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July 19. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend existing contracts In bold below.wrth FIT/NHNH, Inc.. (Vendor
#157730-6001) for the ongoing provision of permanent housing and supportive services to
individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness through the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Federal Continuum of Care (CoC) Program, by
exercising contract renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $183,641 from
$460,028 to $643,669 and extending the completion dates as reflected in . the table below
effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Govemor and Council as indicated below:
Area Served

& Program
Name

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount
Current

Completion
date

Revised

Completion
Date

G&C

Approval

Hiitsborough
County
PHVl

$142,748 $71,374 $214,122 8731/21 8/31/22

O: 07/14/19

(Item #9)
A1: 07/26/20

(ltem#12A)
Merrimack

County
CCPH

$105,327 $0 $105,327 9/30/20

Allowed to

Expire
9/30/20

0: 07/14/19

Strafford

County
Dover PH

$211,953 $112,267 $324,220 10/31/21 10/31/22

0: 07/14/19

(Item #9)
A1: 10/21/20

(Item #13)

Total: $460,028 $183,641 $643,669

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon
the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

The Department of Health and Human Servieee' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for eitixns to achieve health and independence.
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05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $208,314 $0 $208,314

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc TBD $204,088 $0 $204,088

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc TBD $47,626 $0 $47,626

2022 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief

TBD $0 $134,324 $134,324

2023 102-500731

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief

TBD $0 $49,317 $49,317

Total $460,028 $183,641 $643,669

EXPLANATION

Federal regulations require the Department to Identify each vendor; by name, during the
annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process, prior to the grant awards
being Issued. A competitive process occurs at the Federal level and the Department delivers the
funding to the Contractors through these agreements. Specifically, HUD reviews the applications
and subsequently awards funding based on pre-established criteria.

The purpose of this request Is to continue providing a Permanent Housing program that
delivers rental assistance, service access and supportive services to Individuals and families who
are experiencing homelessness.

The programs serve individuals and families experiencing homelessness. Approximately
twenty-eight (28) individuals will be served from September 1, 2021 to October 31. 2022.

Using the Housing First model, vendors develop Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans and facilitate each participant's movement into sustained permanent housing. Additionally,
vendors work to maximize each participant's ability to live more independently by providing
connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following tools:

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic Information and
Income and expense reports, to Include match dollars.

•  Data entry Into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which Is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs.
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As referenced In Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for the one (1) remaining year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there vm'll be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable Individuals and families, in
unsafe and potentially deadly situations, without a safety net. Additionally, If data is riot collected
as required by the contracts, the Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations,
which could result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and
supportive service programs.

Area served: Hillsborough and Strafford Counties

Source of Funds; CFDA #14.267, FAIN # NH0026L1T012013, NH0053L1T002010

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program. \

Respectfully submitted.

I Ari A OKiKiaaHaLori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing VI contract is by and between the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and FIT/NHNH,
Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14, 2019 (Item #9), as amended on August 26, 2020 (Item #12A), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, Amendment and Exhibit C-1,
Revisions to Standard.Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal., the Contract may be amended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

8/31/22

Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$214,122

Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Permanent Housing Program, Section 1, Provisions Applicable
to All Services, Paragraph 1.9, to read:

1.9 ■ The Department shall annually conduct a review, onsite or remotely at DHHS's discretion,
of the Contractor's participant files and at least one month of financial data to ensure
compliance with the contractual objectives.

Modify Exhibit B, Methods, and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers: NH0023L1T0011811 (September 1, 2019-August 31, 2020).

NH0028L1T011912 (September 1, 2020 - August 31, 2021).

NH0026L1T012013 (September 1. 2021 - August 31, 2022).

Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, Subparagraph 1.2.7.1, to read:

1.2.7.1. September 1, 2019 - August 31, 2022, not to exceed the amount specified in Form P-37,
General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation.

Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payrnent, Section 1, Subsection "1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.8, to read;

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

1.

2:

3.

4.

5.

6.

Description September 1,

2019 through
August 31,

2020

September 1,
2020 through
August 31,

2021

September 1,
2021 through
August 31,

2022

Total

Cumulative

Amount

1.2.8.1 Operations: $0 $0 $29,922. $29,922

1.2.8.2 Supportive Sen/ices: $69,134 $69,134 $39,212 ,$177,470

1.2.8.3 Administration: $2,240 $2,240 $2,240 $6,720

1.2.8.4 Total Program Amount: $71,374 $71,374 $71,374 $214,122

1.2.8.5, Vendor Match (25%): $17,844 $17,844 $18,404 $54,P5f\

SS-2020-8HS-04-PERMA-17-A02

A-S-1.0

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

Page 1 of 3

Contractor Initials

Date
7/2212021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective September 1, 2021 upon the date of Governor
and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,
1

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

7/23/2021

Date

^DoeuSlflMd by;

S'MsiA*sKtllo

— BD6054FFECED4B4...

Name: Christine Santaniello

Title:
Associate commissioner

7/22/2Q21

Date

FIT/NHNH, Inc.,

OocoSigntd by;

Name: Maria Devlin

Title:
President & CEO

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04.PERMA.17.A02

Amendment #2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

— DoeuSlgntd by:

7/29/2021

-O2744912EO9e4E0...

Qg{0 Name: Takhmina Rakhmatova

Title:
Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

FIT/NHNH, Inc. Amendment #2

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-17-A02 Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FIT/NHNH, INC is a New

, Hampshire Nonprofit Corpornlion registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 13, 1994.! ftirther certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned. ' ' .

Buslne.ss ID: 207982

Certificate Number 0005352884

%

QtU

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand nnd causc to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 20th day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Scott Ellison , hereby certify that
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of FITNHNH. Inc. .
^  {Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called.and
held on July 22 ^ 2021 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Maria Devlin. President/CEO ^ ; (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory).

is duly authorized on behalf of FIT/NHNH. Inc. to enter Into contracts or agreetments with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3.. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corpor^n. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in cooracts v^th New^mpshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein'.

Dated: July 22. 2021

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Scott Ellison

Title: Board of Director, Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8E03F506-543C-4FBF-99C8-DEEAF2200F2A

FAMIINT-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DBEAUDOIN

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

7/9/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: K tho cortmcato holder Is on ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(kis) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the tenrts and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an cndorsemenL Aetatemonton
this certificate does net confer rlnttts to the certlflcats holder In lieu of such endorsementis).

PROouccn

Davis & Tovrlo Motrlll & Everett, Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

fA)cNo.i?rtj: (603) 226-6811 (wc.noj:(603> 226-7936

INSURPRfSI AFFOntitNTS COVFRAGE NAICf

iNmiRPRATPhlladelDhIa Insurnnce Comoanv 23860

l^rSURED

Families In Transition, inc.
122 Market St

Manchester, NH 03101

SUli HMHhCare AHumaiTSarvIe**Sairinaurae Qroup

INSURER C: *

INSURER Q:

INSURER e !

INSURERF:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF. INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED A30VE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUCIES. LI.MITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IN8R
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADUL SUBK
POUCYNUMDER

POUCY EFF
/MM/nrUVYYY»

POUCY EXP
(MM/nnnrvYYi LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL OC3IERAL UADIUTY

E  OCCUR PHPK2221002 1/1/2021 1/1/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  1,000,000

CLAIMS-PAC 'K^y^ooSumnce} ,  1,000,000

MFD FXP lAnv one oaraon)
^  20,000

PERSONAL a AOV INJURY
,  1,000,000

GENERALAGGREGATE '
,  3,000,000

pqucyT x [ 5^^ IjU loc
OTWn:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO
^  3,000,000

»

A AirrCMOOILE UADIUTY

PHPK2221006 1/1/2021 1/1/2022

COMOINEO SINGLE UNIT J  1,000,000

X ANY AUTO 800ILY INJURY IParperjonl »

«ONLY
SlSVi^ ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTCa DOOILY INJURY IPqr ACCUsnl^ s

■Vfmm " I

t

A X UMQRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIUS-MACX: PHUB751268 "1/1/2021 1/1/2022
FACH OCCURRENCE ^  6,000,000
AGOREOATE

DEO X| RETENTIONS 10,000 ,  5,000,000
B WORKERS COMPENSATION

ANO EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY y . ̂
AMY PROPRIETOR/PARTNEiUEXECLmve- L

II ya*. daacnbo undar
OFRCRIPTION OF OPFRATIONS Ijfllow

N/A
HCHS20200000404 2/1/2021 2/1/2022

1 PER 1 OTH-
Iktatir-f I FR

E.L. EACH AfX^IDFNT J  1,000,000
e.L. DISEA.SE EA EMPLOYEE ,  1,000,000
E.L. DISEASE POLICY UMG ,  1,000,000

A

A

Professional Lloblll

Professional Llablli

PHPK2221002

PHPK2221002

1/1/2021

1/1/2021

1/1/2022

1/1/2022

Each Occurrence

Aggregate
1,000,000
3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPCRATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD101, Additional Remaria Sotiedulo,may bo attachod {{more apaca la required}
51,000,000 Excess Employers Liability Coverage Is provided under Policy# EWC009477 by Midwest Employers Casualty Corp. - policy term 2/1/2020 • 2/2/2021.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS
129 Pleasant St
Cencord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVG

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Families
in Transition

Our Mission

The mission of Families in Transition is to prevent and
break the cycle of homelessness.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

With Independent Auditor's Report
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I^BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FIT/NHNH, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2020 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Staterhents

Management is responsible for the preparation and- fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S.. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes.the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material rnisstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform, the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material rnisstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements, the procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
pur audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2020, and the
changes., in their consolidated net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended In
accordaric^with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts ■ Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizono

berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Page 2

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2019 consolidated financial statements and. in our
report dated March 31, 2020', expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2019 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived. ^

Other Matter

_ Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the consolidating
statement of financial position as of December 31, 2020, and the related consolidating statements of
activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the individual
entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and.
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Manchester, New Hampshire \ ,
March 29, 2021
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
• Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties
Investments

Investment in related entity
Property and equipment, net
Development In process
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities

. Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamortized deferred costs

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions - controlling interest
Without donor restrictions - noncontrolling interest

Total.without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2020

3,536,208
67,946

1,691,498

87,753

2019

2,522,454
67,501

589,218

65,512
59.367

5.444.351 3.304.052

512,271 428,390
847,300 1,012,597

1,235,007 1,123,413

1,000 1,000

34,425,916 32,788,053
218,835 155,686
. 80.638 80.638

42.765.318 5;  38.893.829

345,909 $;  317.739

889,234 167,557

264,583 372,038

134.693 59.671

1,634,419 917,005

15.223.778 15.610.670

16.858.197 16.527.675

22,831,326 19,284,224

2.344.795 2.602.333

25,176,121 21,886,557

731.000 479.597

25.907.121 22.366.154

S  42.765.318 $ 38.893.829

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019)

Revenue and supporl
Federal, state and other grant support
CARES Act Grants
Rental income, net of vacancies
Thrift store sales

Public support
Tax credit revenue

■ Special events
Developer fees

VISTA program revenue
Unrealized gain on investments
(Loss) gain on disposal of assets
Interest income

Irvkind donations

Investment income

Forgiveness of debt
Medicaid reimbursements

Other income

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

Expenses
Program activilies

Housing
Thrift store

Total program activilies
Fundraising
Management and general

Total expenses

Excess of revenue and support over expenses

Capital contritxjtions
Partnership distributions

Char>ge in net assets

Change in net assets attributable to noncontrolltng interest in
subsidiaries

Char>ge in net assets after redassification of portion
attritMJtabie to norKontrolling interest in
subsidiaries

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Without Donor Restrictions . Without Donor Restrictions

- Controiiina Interest - NoncontroHino interest '

S  4.317.329 $
4.183,652

2.492.880
-410.942

2.952.466

420.547

121,670

103,827

(1.362)
14.838
9.244
8.207

131.267

488.990
201.865

363.828 • >

16.220.190

10.277.005
415.817

10.692.822
.1.074,295
1.186.537

12,953,654

3.266.536

24.438
(543)

3.290.431

256.671

3:547.102

19.284.224

Total Without Donor

Restrictions

i  4.317.329

4.183.652
2.492.880
410.942

. 2.952.466

420.547

121.670

103,827

(1.362)
14.838
9.244
8.207

131.267

488.990
• 201.865
363.828

16.220.190

(867)

(867)

(256.671)

(257.538)

2,602,333

10,277.005
415,817

10,692.822.

1.074.295
1,186,537

12.953.654

3.266.536

24.438

(1.410)

3.289.564

3.289.564

21,886.557

22,831,326 $ 2.344.795 $ 25.176.121 $

With Donor Total Total

Restrintions 2020 2019

.615.231 $ 4,932.560 S 4.629.513
. 4,183,652 .

. 2,492,880 2.346.802

. 410.942 573.355

. 2,952.466 2.050.951
-

. 268.238
- 420.547 518.237
• 121.670 101.545
. . 75.368
. 103,827 252,431
. (1.362) 210,190
. 14,838 19,326
. 9,244 105.484
- 8.207 21.969
. 131,267 131.267
. 488,990 674.861
- 201.865 226.640

(363.828) . -

251.403 16.471.593 12.206.177

10,277,005 9.524.438
> 415.817 417,963

- 10,692.622 9,942.401
. 1,074,295 1.000.388
. 1.186.537 1.078.712

. 12.953.654 . 12.021.501

251.403 3.517.939 184.676

. 24,438 12.928

. (1.410) (7.317)

251.403 3,540,967 190.287

251.403 3,540,967 190.287

479.597 22.366.154 22.175.867

731.000 $ 25.907.121 $ 22.366.154

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 8E03F506-543C-4FBF-99C8-DEEAF2200F2A

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
\

Year Ended December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019)

Program Activities

Management 2020 2019

Housina Thrift Store Fundraisina and General Total Total

sries and benefits

Salaries and wages $ 4,739,044 $  268,372 $  465,765 $  683,020 $ 6,156,201 $ 5.295,139

Employee benefits 506,292 21,134 49,673 73,234 650,333 546.228

Payroll taxes 329:916 20.663 33.444 49.060 433.083 393.960

Total salaries and

benefits ,  5,575,252 310,169 548,882 805,314 7,239,617 6,235,327

er expenses
56,494Advertising 9,001 19,278 2,335 5,749 . 36,363

Application and permit fees - - • - 4,915

Bad debts> 63,594 - - .  - 63,594 13,402

Bank charges 8,125 6,059 881 7,027 22,092 21,874

Condominium association fees 15,515 . - - 15,515 12,072

Consultants 109,301 2,900 13,736 18,272 . 144,209 49,374

COVID expenses 336,834 1,840 36,824 52,646 . 428,144 .

Depreciation 1,116,863 10,101 166,761 88,507 1.382,232 1,239,330

Events 9,709 741 63,921 . 74,371 147,755

Food 156,813 - - - 156,813 124,060

General insurance 150,186 1,924 16,826- 11,565 180,501 175,444

Interest expense 189,205 494 36,525 12,175 238,399 221,658

Management fees - - - - • 6,724

Meals and entertainment ,  1,663 138 192 285 2,278 4,747

Membership dues 10,449 - 1,289 1,933 13,671 8,621

Merger expenses - - - - ■ 146,686

Office supplies 64.808 ■  8,490 6,841 10,075 90,214 131,166

Operational expenses - other 156,304 - ■ - 156,304 107,422.

Participant expenses 72,037 - - ♦ 72,037 139,602
Postage 7,219 8 912 1,352 9,491 16,240

Printing 18,189 3,112 2,198 3,216 26,715 47,361

Professional fees 128,112^ 4,000 8,677 42,254 183,043 212,640

Rental subsidies 301,110 - - - 301,110 332,635

Repairs and maintenance 422,528 17,050 56,979 31,988 528,545 721,321

Staff development 24,383 50 2,959 ' 4,424 31,816 45,882

Taxes 337,333 3,000 - 340,333 367,212

Technology support 147,700 1,376 17,247 25,620 191,943 221,898

Telephone 122,090 . 1,320 10,143 15,114 148,667 137,136

Travel 21,145 272 2,767 4,134 28,318 51,658

Utilities 508,965 17,984 64,754 26,209 617,912 643,659

VISTA program 66,785 • 12,646 - 79,431 208,887

Workers' compensation 125.787 5.511 - 18.678 149,976 168.299

Total expenses S 10.277.005 $  415.817 $ 1.074.295 $ 1.186.537 S12.953.654 S12.021.501

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 8E03F506-543C-4FBF-99C8-DEEAF2200F2A

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019)

Cash flows from operating activities
Change innet assets ^
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by

operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Forgiveness of debt
Unrealized gain on Investment's
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related party
Other current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Repayments from related parties
(Purchases) proceeds from sale of investments

.  Investment in development in process
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Acquisition of property and equipment

•Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net repayments on line of credit
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Payment of financing costs
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year

Composition of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year
Cash and cash equivalents
Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties

Supplemental disclosures:
Acquisition of property and equipment through accounts payable

Acquisition of property and equipment through long-term borrowings from seller

Property and equipment transferred from development in process

Interest paid

2020 2019

3,540,967 $ 190,287

1,395,576 1,253,461
(131,267) (131,267)
(103,827) (252,431)

1,362 (210,190)

(445) (15,290)
(1,102,280) 197,125

(22,241) 14,495

(1.579) 106,578

(46,887) (82,350)
(107,455) 23,943

- (35,613)
75.022 .  (22.8041

3.496.946 1.035.944

35,613
(7,767) 465,602-

(63,149) (523,132)
. 846,634

f2.227.4811 (1.730.3331

f2.298.3971- (905.6161

(145,000)
2,452 2,127,975

- (31,409)
(268.6631 •  (771.2181

f266.2111 1.180:348

932,338 1,310,676

3.963.441- 2.652.765

1  4.895.779 $ 3.963.441

3,536,208 $ 2,522,454

512,271 428,390

847.300 1.012.597

4.895.779 S 3.963.441

768.564 $

25^412

238.399

3.972.898

221.658

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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OocuSign Envelope ID: 8E03F506-543C-4FBF-99C6-DEEAF2200F2A

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

Organization

FIT/NHNH, an incorporated New Hampshire nonprofit, provides hunger relief, emergency shelter, safe
affordable housing and support services to individuals and families who are homeless or In need in the
State of New Hampshire. The programs and sen/ices offered provide positive outcomes through the
incorporation of evidence based models and practices to meet identified needs and goals of those they
serve and provide an integrated system of care to prevent homelessness when possible and rapidly
rehouse those who become homeless, including both the chronically homeless and families .with
children.

The Organization directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street,
■ Spruce Street, Lake Avenue and Douglas Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing

facilities are owned and operated by two limited partnerships of which the Organization, or one of its
subsidiaries, is the sole general partner. These limited partnerships include Family Bridge Limited
Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street in Manchester, New Hampshire; and Family
Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on South Beech Street in Manchester,-New
Hampshire (collectively referred to as the Limited Partnerships).

The Organization .also owns and operates emergency shelters for homeless individuals in facilities
located on Manchester Street and Union Street in Manchester, NH. In 2020, FIT/NHNH purchased an
additional property on Lake Ave in Manchester, New Hampshire where it will operate its food pantry
formerly located at the Manchester Street, Manchester, New Hampshire facility.

Housing Benefits, a Community Development Housing Organization was created to identify and
develop new housing" units and refurbish existing units to meet the persistent need of combating
homelessness. Completed housing units are located on Concord Street, School & Third Street,- Lowell
Street, Belmont Street, Market Street, Spruce Street and Hayward Street, in Manchester, New
Hampshire as well as additional housing-facilities located on Central Avenue in Dover, New Hampshire
(Dover), and at,Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire and an emergency shelter location in
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire.

On April 12, 2019, HB-AH, LLC (HB-AH) was legally formed as a limited liability company organized
under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, which is treated as a disregarded entity for federal
income tax purposes. HB-AH's purpose' is to acquire, own, rent, operate and manage 23 residential,
apartments located in Manchester, New Hampshire. HB-AH is to operate exclusively to further the
charitable purpose of Housing Benefits, HB-AH's sole member.

The Organization is the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEH), a New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families in the Manchester,
New Hampshire area. MEH is the only family shelter in Manchester, New. Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 10.0% of Family Outfitters, LLC (OutFITters), a limited liability corporation.
OutFITters operates an independent thrift store in Manchester, New Hampshire with the sole purpose
of generating an alternate funding stream for the Organization.
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OocuSign Envelope ID: 8E03F506-543C-4FBF-99C&-DEEAF2200F2A

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

The Organization is the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End Homelessness
(NHCEH), a statewide entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for homelessness through
research, education and advocacy."

Wilson Street Condominium Association (the Association) was established for the purpose of
maintaining, and preserving a five unit property located on Wilson Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire. The Organization is the majority owner of the Association.

The Organization has several wholly-owned corporations which include Second Street Family Mill, Inc.
(Family Mill), and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General
Partners), all of which are New Hampshire corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent
the .01% sole general partners in the Limited Partnerships, whereby Family Mill is a. general partner of
Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree is a general partner of Family Willows.

In 2021, it is anticipated that FIT/NHNH will begin the redevelopment of its Union St property. The
project, known as Angle's Housing Program, will create 11 units of permanent, supportive housing for
those experiencing homelessness.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principres of Consolidation

Since the General Partners have control of .the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 810-20-25,
Consolidation, the financial statements of the Limited Partnerships are required to be consolidated
with the Organization's consolidated financial statements. The limited'partners' ownership interest
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position as noncontrolling interest.

The consolidated financial statements include the net assets of the Organization, the Limited
Partnerships, Housing Benefits, HB-AH, MEH, OutFITters, NHCEH, the Association, and the
General Partners. All significant inter-entity balances and transactions are eliminated in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 8E03F506-543C-4FBF-99Ce-DEEAF2200F2A

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
inforrriation in total, but not by net asset classification. Such information does not include sufficient
detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
December 31, 2019 consolidated financial statements, from which the summarized information

was derived.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements.
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial staternents of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP, which require the Organization to report information regarding to its consolidated
financial position and activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed.by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated "the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor restricted
contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction
expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without
donor restrictions in the consolidated statement of activities.

All contributions are considered to be available for general use unless specifically restricted by the
donor. Amounts received that, are designated for future periods or. restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are, reported as support with dpnor restrictions that increases net assets with
donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as support without donor restrictions in the year of
the gift.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 8E03F506-543C-4FBF-99C6-DEEAF2200F2A

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

The Organization reports contributions of buildings or equipment as support without donor
restrictions, unless a donor places explicit restriction on its use. Contributions of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor
restrictions and reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions when the assets are acquired
and placed in service.

Cash and Cash Equivalents .

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains Its cash in bank deposit accounts which,
at times, may exceed the federally insured limits. Management regularly monitors the financial
institutions, together with their respective cash balances, and attempts to maintain the potential risk
at a minimum. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.
\

Reserves are those deposits of cash and cash equivalents not generally available for operating
costs, but restricted to particular uses including operating and replacement reserves for rental
properties as well as certain other social services and programs.

Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation,.less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. Assets not in service are not depreciated. Following is
a summary of estimated useful lives by asset category;

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and improvements 3 - 40 years

' Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Equipment 3-10 years •
Vehicles 5 years

Rental Income

Rental revenue is recognized pro rata over each tenant's period of occupancy. A contract is
entered into with a tenant and covers a (Deriod of twelve months. All rents are collected at the
beginning of each month and are nonrefundable. A tenant has'an option to cancel a lease at any
time with a minimum of 30 days notice, at which time the Organization will prorate the final rent
payment through a tenant's expected move-out date.

-10-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8E03F506-543C-4FBF-99C8-DEEAF2200F2A

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

When a contract is entered into with a tenant, the Organization collects a security deposit. The
security deposits are maintained in separate cash accounts and a corresponding liability is
recognized. Upon termination of a tenant's contract, the Organization assesses the condition of the
unit being vacated. If it is determined a unit is vacated in a condition equivalent to when the tenant
occupied the unit, the security deposit is refunded to the tenant. If a unit is determined to be
vacated in a condition less than equivalent to when the tenant occupied the unit, the security
deposit is retained and recognized as revenue.

Volunteer Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these services has not been included in the accornpanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was
approximately $414,047 and $1,030,000, respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses allocated includie salaries and
benefits, depreciation and amortization, office and other expenses, which are allocated based on
direct payroll hours by functional cost centers.

Change in Net Assets from Operations

The consolidated statements of activities include a measure of change in net assets from
operations. Changes in net assets which are excluded from change in net assets from operations
include capital contributions and partner distributions which are considered non-operating.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a.tax-exempt Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) public charity as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from /ederal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 50.1 (a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes require the Organization to report any
uncertain tax positions and to adjust its financial statements for the impact thereof. As of December
31, 2020 and 2019, the Organization determined that it had no tax positions that did not meet the
more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable, tax authority. The Organization
files an informational return in the United States. This return is generally subject to examination by
the federal government for up to three years.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 8E03F506-543C-4FBF.99C8-DEEAF2200F2A

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

No provision for taxes on income is made in the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since,
as partnerships, all taxable income and losses are allocated to the partners for inclusion in their
respective tax returns.

The Association is not exerript from income taxes; however, the Code categorizes any profits
realized by the Association from its member activities as reductions of members' contributions
towards the operation of the condominium property and not as taxable incorhe of the Association
or its mernbers. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in these consolidated
financial statements.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.in conformity with U.S.
GAAP, the Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 29, 2021,
which was the date the consolidated financial, statements were available to be issued.

Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated
financial statements.

2. Availabilitv and Liauiditv of Financial Assets

As of December 31, 2020, the Organization has working capital, excluding current assets with
, donor restrictions, of $3,095,757 and average days,(based on normal expenditures) cash and cash
equivalents on hand of 90.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on long-term debt, and capital acquisitions not
funded through replacement reserves or financed with debt, were as follows:

2020 2019

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,536,208 $ 2,522,454
Accounts receivable 67,946 67,501

Grants and contributions receivable 1,691,498 589,218
Investments 1.235.007 1.123.413

Total financial assets 6,530,659 4,302,586

Donor-imposed restrictions:
Restricted funds 1731.000) f479.597) .

Financial assets available at year end for
'current use $ 3.822.989

The Organization also has a line of credit available to meet short-term needs, as described in Note
5.
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OocuSign Envelope ID: 8E03F506-543C-4FBF-99C8-DEEAF2200F2A

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

The Organization has replacement reserves and cash reserves designated for properties as part of
its debt financing with New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA) which are only
available when approved by NHHFA. As a result, these replacement reserves and cash reserves
designated for properties are not considered available for general expenditure within the next year
and are not reflected in the amount above. The goal for the Organization is to maintain a balanced
budget while meeting the requirements of the various financing authorities.

3. Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2020 2019

Land $  3,764,378 $ 3;764,378

Land improvements 650,360 650,360

Buildings and improvements 41,941,856 39,119,498

Furniture and fixtures . 1,055,379 920,936

Equipment 639,373 604,425

Vehicles 386,565 361,153

Construction in progress. - 850

48,437,911 45,421,600

Less: accumulated depreciation, 14.011.995 12.633.547

Property and equipment, net S  34.425,916 $ 32.788.053

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Organization held $37,334,275 and $37,087,574,
respectively, of land, land Improvements, and buildings and improvements for the purpose of
leasing to individuals. Accumulated depreciation on . the land improvements, buildings and
improvements at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $10,319,415 and $9,284,428, respectively.

4. Development in Process

- At December 31, 2020 and 2019, development in process consisted of various projects in process
related to all of the properties owned by the Organization.

5. Line of Credit

The Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement, renewed annually, with a financial
institution in the amount of $550,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest rate on any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution,
with a floor of 4%. There were no outstanding-balance as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. ̂
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

6. LonO'Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
2020 2019

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA in monthly payments of $680,
including interest at 1% and an escrow of $289. The loan is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in
full in January 2033. $. 46,492 $ 50,142

A note payable to NHHFA. The note is noninterest bearing and is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester. New Hampshire. The note is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or in June 2042. 163,283 163,283

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank in monthly payments
of $883, including interest at 5% for five years. After five years,
the interest rate adjusts to match the then "current Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston 5-year, 20-year amortizing rate
pius 2.50%. The loan is collateralized by real estate on Spruce
Street. Manchester, New Hampshire and is due and payable in
full in May 2034. ■ 103,048 . 104,019

A mortgage loan payable to TO Bank, N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,123, including interest at 4.1%. The loan is coliateralized by
real estate at Beech Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
loan is due and payable in full in November 2023. 36,401 48,028

A mortgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank in monthly
payments of $2,126, including interest at 7.18%. The loan is
collateralized by real estate on Douglas Street, Manchester,
New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in full in April
2024. 196,746 207,307

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property. Monthly payments of
$1,095 Include interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and interest are fully paid with the final installment due and
payable on May 1, 2034. , 128,086 • 135,156
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FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 50% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable on May 28, 2034. This note is
nonrecourse. 84,456 85,018

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus, cash are due.
The note is due and payable on May 28, 2033. This note is
nonrecourse and is subordinate to the $84,456 note payable, 336,674 336,955

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to • ' . '
Merrimack County, collateralized by Bicentennial property and
various financing instruments. The note is due and payable in
full in May 2033. • 260,000" 260,000

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Millyard II property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable upon sale or refinancing of the
property or in May 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 445,068 445,068

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to " NHHFA,
collateralized- by Millyard II property. Monthly payments of
$1,729 include principal and interest at 3.5% per annum. The
final installment is due and payable on Septemtier 1, 2032. . 193,172 207,057

A note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire, collateralized by Millyard II property and various
financing instruments. A payment of interest shall be made
annually no later than August 1 each year based on 42.5% of
the net cash flow, as defined. In any year where the Debt
Coverage. Ratio, as defined, exceeds 1.15 to 1. principal
payments shall be made no later than August 1 in an amount
that will result in a 1.15 to 1 Debt Coverage Ratio. All unpaid-
amounts are due and payable in full on August 1, 2031. This
note is nonrecourse. 226,725 ■ 226,725

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to the New
Hampshire Community Loan Fund, Inc. (NHCLF), collateralized
by Millyard II property. Payment of principal is due and payable
on December 31, 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 250,000 250,000
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

I  December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by Millyard Families I real estate. The note is noninterest
bearing and is due and payable in January 2027. 230,000 230,000

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to CDFA,
collateralized by Millyard Families I real estate. Monthly
payments of $1,121 include principal and interest at 2% per
annum. The final installment is due and payable on June 15,
2022. 19,860 32,773

A mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30,2034. 850,000 ' 850,000

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TD Bank, N.A.,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,019
include principal and interest at 4.33%. The note is payable in
full in November 27; 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT/NHNH, Inc.
and Family Mill, 396,436. 415,323

A promissory note payable^ by Family Bridge to the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash flow payable by
October 1. The outstanding principal is due by October 1, 2034.
The note is collateralized by real estate and is nonrecourse. 600,000 600,000

A mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on July 9,
2037. 505,816 516,277

A note payable by Family Wlllo\ws to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October 1. All outstanding
principal is due by October 2029. The note is collateralized by
real estate and is nonrecourse. 72,726 ' 81,817
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

A note payable by Family Willows to RBS Citizens Bank,
collateralized by real, estate. Monthly payments of $1,922
include principal and Interest at 3.25%, based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note is payable in full on June 27, 2033 and
is guaranteed by FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Big Shady Tree. 235,835 251,100

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. Monthly payments of $2,683 include principal and
interest at 8% per annum. The note is due in February 2021. 9,544 40,664

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHCLF,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. The note bears no interest and monthly payments of
$2,775 will commence on April 15, 2021 and continue until
maturity in October 2039. 617,613 617,613

. A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Belmont Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full by December 2040. 413,575 413,575

A mortgage note payable frorri Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires, annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The' note'is
payable in full in August 2040. 34,628 34,628

A second, noninterest bearing, mortgage note payable from
Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate. Annual payments
equal to the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$4,000 commenced in October 2012 .and continue until the
maturity date in June 2041. 156,022 160,022

A noninterest bearing promissory note payable from Housing
Benefits to NHHFA collateralized by a mortgage and security
agreement on Lowell Street real estate. The note is to be
forgiven 1/15th annually over the low-income housing tax credit
compliance period which ends in 2026, subject to compliance
with certain requirements. During 2020 and 2019, $131,267
was recognized as revenue and support in the consolidated
statements of activities. 721,963 853,230
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
y

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 /

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Dover real estate and personal property. The
noninterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2028. 216,148 216,148

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
-by real estate located at 393-395 Spruce Street. Annual
payments of the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$5,000 are due annually by October 1. The note is due in full by
Octoberl, 2045. 567,808 ,572,808

A mortgage note payable to TO Bank, N.A.. collateralized by real
estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property
located at 161 South Beech Street, Unit 2. Monthly payments of
$2,137 include principal and interest at 4.35%. The note is due
in full by April 2024. ■ 372,849 386,216

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $488, including
interest at 4.06%. The loan was paid in full in 2020. . - 4,237

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $760, including
interest at 5.374%. The loan was paid in full in 2020. - 5,989

A- vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $472, including
interest at 4.25%. The loan is due in March 2025 and is

collateralized by the related vehicle. 20,560

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $308, including
,  interest at 4.75%. The loan is due in October 2023 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle. 9,791 12,930

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA, collateralized by the real
estate at Lake Avenue, Manchester, New Hampshire. The non-
interest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2045. 750,000 750,000

A mortgage note payable to TO Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 641 Hayward Street, Manchester, New
Hampshire. Monthly payments-of $991 include principal and '
interest at 3.015%. The note is due in full by October 2025. 174,276 177,428
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

A mortgage note payable to Peoples United Bank, collateralized by
Hope House. Monthly payments of $2,283 include principal and
interest at 4.94%. The note is due in full by January 2027. 364,674 373,411

A construction loan payable to Franklin Savings ■ Bank,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. Housing Benefits has the ability
to draw up to $825,000 on -the promissory note. Monthly
payments including principal, interest and escrow of $6,854 are
due over a 30 year period starting September 2018 at 4.90%
interest. 707,538 724,146

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of >

- $720,000. Annual payments are due in amounts equal to 25%
of surplus cash. The loan is due in full by November 1, 2047. 720,000 720,000

Three vehicle loans collateralized by an activity bus payable to
Ford Credit in monthly payments of $392 at 5.9% annual

"  interest rate. The loans are due and payable in March 2022. 15,937 28,771

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to. the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street, 2nd Floor. The note
has a borrowing limit of $1,655,323. As costs are incurred.
Housing Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of Manchester.
Annual payments of the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as
defined, or $5,000 are due by October 1 commencing October
1, 2019. The note Is due in full by October 1, 2047. 1,453,182 1,458,182

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester, collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson
Street, 3rd Floor: The note is funded by the City of
Manchester's Community Improvement Program and the City of
Manchester's Affordable Housing Trust Funds. The note has a
borrowing limit of $531,252. As costs are'incurred. Housing
Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual
payments in the amount of 25% of net cash flow, as defined,
are due by October 1 commencing October 1, 2019. The note
is due in full by December 1, 2047. 531,252 531 ;252
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located in Wolfeboro, New
Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $780,000. Annual
payments in amounts equal to 25% of surplus cash. The loan is
due in full by December 1, 2047. 780,000 780,000

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA and is collateralized by the
real estate and personal property of HB-AH, LLC on Concord
Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. The mortgage is
insured Ipy the U.S Department of Housing and Urban
Development through the Housing Finance Agency Risk
Sharing Program authorized by Section 542(c) of the Housing
and Community Development Act of 1992. Monthly payments
of $6,745 are due for principal and interest at 4.20%. All
remaining principal is due on May 1, 2059. 1,542,342 1,558,090

A technical assistance note payable to NHHFA to provide support
to the Organization for renovations at the Union Street Shelter
in Manchester, New Hampshire. If the renovation project is
approved, NHHFA is expected to be the lead lender on
renovations. If the renovation project is not approved NHHFA
will forgive the borrowings. The noninterest bearing note
payable is due at the time of closing on the construction loan. 44,079 41,627

. A note payable to CDFA, collateralized by real estate located at
.  199 Manchester Street, Manchester, Nevy Hampshire. Principal
only payments are due for the first 18 months, at which time
monthly payments include principal and interest at 2% will be
required until December 2021. 9.268 28.924

15,613,873 15,985,939

Less current portion 345,909 317,739
Less unamortized deferred costs 44.186 57.530

$ 15.223.778 $15.610.670

Surplus cash for the purposes of these disclosures is as defined in the respective loan
agreements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

Principal maturities of long-term debt over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2021 $ 345.909 '
2022 229,001

2023 . ' 551,929
2024 666,228
2025 303,181
Thereafter 13.517.625

$15.613.873

Interest expense charged to operations, including amortization of deferred costs of $13,344, was
$238,399 and $221,658 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

7. Net Assets

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, net assets without donor restrictions are fully available to support
operations of the Organization.

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

Investments to be maintained in perpetuity,

income is to support general operations

2020 2019

25.000 S 25.000

Funds maintained with donor restrictions

temporary in nature:
The Family Place 134,190 81,933
Scholarships 19,264 8,764
Housing programs 35,000 37,500

.. Direct care for clients 147,904 88,784
Hope House 369,642 21,067
NHNH merger • 12,779
Substance use disorder services - 119,760

NHNH programs ■ 17,344
Passage of time : 66.666

Total funds maintained with donor

restrictions temporary in nature
706.000 454.597

Total net assets with donor

restrictions $ 731.000 S 479.597
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December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2020 2019

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Operating releases

. The Family Place $  9,280 $ 26,607

VISTA program - 48,116
Housing programs 55,000 -

Direct care for clients 103,321 71,083

Community Gardens - 2,000

Hope House 21,566 107,175

NHNH merger 76,944 122,810

Substance use disqrder services 97.717 374,438

NHNH programs - 107

363.828 752.336

Capital project releases )

Family Willows Recovery Housing
Program ' - 264,238

NHNH programs ; : 35.616

.  - 299,854

$  363.828 S - 1.052.190

8. Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships' Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA. as a
condition of the allocation of low-income housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain In compliance with Code Section 42 for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.

9. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. All employees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at 100% up to 3% of compensation. The
Organization contributed $99,580 and $71,543 during the years ended December 31, 2020 and
.2019, respectively.
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10. Noncontrollinq Interest

Noncontrolling interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners in the Limited Partnerships as follows:

Limited Partner Prooertv 2020 2019

BCCC, Inc. Family Bridge 10 10

Boston Financial Corporate Family Bridge 607,520 766,943
BCCC. Inc. Family Willows 10 10
Boston Financial Midway Family Willows 1.737.255 1.835.370

$  2.344.795 $ 2.602.333

11. Uncertainty

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
a global pandemic. Local. U.S.. and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the

.  spread of the global pandemic, COVID-19. by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in
many sectors and imposing limitations on travel and the size and duration of group meetings. Many
sectors are experiencing disruption to business operations. There is unprecedented uncertainty
surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and the scale of
government actions to mitigate them. To date, the U.S. government Has passed legislation which
allows for increased funding to states to assist in paying for costs associated with COVID-19.
Therefore, while management expects this matter to impact operating results, the related financial
impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated.

On April 8, 2020, the Organization received a loan frorn the U.S. Small Business Agency (SBA)
within the CARES Act under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) in the amount of $1,188,400.
The loan had a two-year term with a maturity date of April 2022, bearing an annual interest rate of.
1%, and was to be payable monthly with the first six monthly payments deferred. The principal
amount of the PPP was subject to forgiveness, upon the Organization's request, to the extent that
the proceeds are used to pay qualifying expenditures, including payroll costs, interest on
mortgages, rent and utilities, incurred by the Organization. The Organization received notification
from the lender of the loan that the amount had been forgiven in full in November 2020. The full
amount of the PPP received and forgiven is included in the federal, state and other grant support in
the consolidated statement of activities for the year ended December 31, 2020.

In August 2020, the Organization was awarded a grant in the amount of $2,832,815 from the State
of New Hampshire's Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR). The
GOFERR grant is a pass-through grant provided to the State of New Hampshire through the
CARES Act. The GOFERR grant will be used by the Organization to cover eligible costs outlined in
the grant agreement that are incurred through December 30, 2020. At December 31, 2020, the
Organization had received the entire grant amount and the full amounts of the awards have been
recognized as revenue in the consolidated statement of activities as conditions of the funding have
been met.
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In March 2020, the Organization was award a grant under the McKinney Emergency Shelter Grant
Program (ESG) through the City of Manchester. The funds were provided to decompress the
shelters as a result of the pandemic. The grant was paid on a reimbursement basis as qualifying
expenses were incurred. Through December 31,-2020, the Organization had incurred $162,437 of
qualifying expenses. The funds have been recognized as revenue in the consolidated statement of
activities and were in accounts receivable at December 31, 2020.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2020

ASSETS

New

Hampshire
Families In • New Horizons Manchester Coalition to Wilson Street

Transition - Limited Housing Family (or New Emergency End Condominium With Donor

Ooeratino Pannershios Benefits Outfitters Hamoshire Housina Homelessness Association Restriction Eliminations Total

Cunent assets

Cash and cash equivalents $  1.795.698 S  45.009 S  183.157 S  13.373 $  596,078 $  618 $  174.880 J . 21.395 $  706.000 $  - i 3,536,208
Accounts receivable 207.973 12;652 36.815 - 2,700 . . . . (192.194) 67,946
Grants arid contritxitions receivable 607.168 - .

. 1,076.440 7,890 . . . - 1,691,498
Prepaid expenses 24.656 •  15.093 18.726 . 26.296 394 . 2.588 - - 87,753
Due from related parties 1.567.121 24.493 156.513 9"3.673 695.490 - 2,807 - - (2,540,097) -

Other cunenl assets 4.900 17.374 38.672 - - . . . . 60.946

Total current assets 4.207.516 114.621 433.883 107.046 2.397.004 8.902 177.687 23.983 706.000 (2.732.2911 5.444.351

Replacement reserves 78.891 121.247 .279,047 . . _
. 33.086 .

. 512,271
Reserve cash designated for properties 66.865 249.054 531.381- - - ■ - - • - 847.300
Related party notes receivable
Accrued interest receivable on related party

notes

Investments

Investment in related entities

Property and equipment, net
Development in process
Other assets

Total assets

Curent liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Oiie to related parties
Other current liabBities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion and
unamortized deferred costs

Total liaMities

Net assets

Net assets without donor restrictions -
controllirtg interest

Net assets without donor restrictions -

noncontrolling Interest

Total net assets without donor

restriction

Net assets with donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

1.725.799

1.'248.852
1.181.187

1.196.347

3.517.593
207.489

,7.312.634
25.051

19.395.631

50,000

21.871

28.820

4,154.610
11.346

30.638

25.000

1.380 1.485 20.712

(1.725.799)

(1.248.852)

(1.220'.398)
1.235.007

•  1.000

34.425.916
218.835

80.638

S 13.430.539 S 7.797.556 S 20.714.993 $ 128.917 $ 6.622.418 $ 10.282 $ 179.172 S n.781 731.000 S (6.927.3401 $ 42.765.318

UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

105.483
109.327

136.831

843.472
5.058

1.200.171

1.633.073

2.833.244

10.597.295

10.597.295

10.597.295

$ 13.430.539

55.392
74.618

781.758
118.419

21.900

1.052.087

3.637.088 '

4.689.175

170.958

41.931
524.710

1,386.125

40.530

2.164.254

11.663.664

13.827,918

803

10,779
15,411

14.076

830,449
49.530

6.590
66.450

1,661
9,827

170.006

2.256

755

20.183

74

26.993 967.095

15.752

181,694 3.011 20.257

26,993

763.586

2.344.795

3.108.381

3.108.381

6,887.075

6.887.075

6.887.075

982.847 161.694

101,924

101,924

101.924

5.639,571

5,639.571

5,639.571

3.011 20,257

(171,412) 176.161 57.524

(192.194)

(1.248,852)
(2.540.097)

(3.981.143)

(1.725.799)

(5.706.942)

345.909
889.234

264.583

134.693

1.634.419

15.223.778

16.858.197

(1.220.398) 22.831,326-

;  2.344.795

(171,412) 176,161 57.524

731.000

(1,220.398) 25.176,121

-  731,000

(171,412) 176.161 57.524 731.000 (1.220.398) 25.907.121

$^128^ S 6J22^ ■ S^^IO^ S_179j^ $ 77.781 t 731.000 S (6.927.340) $ 42.765.318
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Consolidating Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Revenue and support
Federal, stale and other grant support
CARES Act Grants

Rental Income, net of vacancies
Thrift store sales

Public support
Tax credit revenue

Special events
Property management fees
Developer fees
VISTA program revenue
Unrealized gain on Investments
Loss on disposal of assets

Interest Income

In-kind donations

Investment Income

Forgiveness of debt
Medicald reimbursements
Other Income

f^et assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

Expenses
Program acllvllles
Fundraising
Management and gerteral

Total expenses

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
arxl support over expenses

Capital contributions
Partnership distributions

Change In net assets

FamBies In

Transition- Limited

Operating ' Partnerships

$ 3.022,410

1,288,103
283,138

2,274,854

122,475

957,615
121,670

34,849

(1.362)
104,472
7.977

488,990
107,679

363.828

9.176.698

6.034.654
541,764

847.099

7.423.517

1,753.181

695,337

1,420

19,103

972,545

972.545

(256,685)

(1.410)

Housing
Benefits

400,648

1,558,365

180,740

4,761

131,267

96,157

715.860 2,371,938

2,511,090
306,134

130,678

2.947.902

(575,964)

Family"
Outfitters

410,942

100

12,478

New Horizons MarKhester

for New Emergency
Hampshire Housirw

S  1.271,795
2,895,549

23,900

394,024

298,072

68,978

1.267

8.207

6,116

423,520 4,967.908

478,862 2,135,458
226,397

-  273,056

478.862 2.634.911

(55,342) 2,332,997

224,215

2,466

119

32; 150

New

. Hampshire
Coalition to Wilson Stree]

End Condominium

Homelessness Association

258,950

279,417

192

279.609

(20,659)

102.629

3,530

106,159

17,151

17,151

89,006

77,476

77

16.802.

94,355

24,438

Eliminations

S  (601.739) S

(147,802)

Without

Donor

Restrictions With Donor

Total . Restrictions

4,317,329

4.183,652
2,492,880
410,942

2.952,466

420,547

121,670

103.827

(1,362)
14,838
9,244

8,207
131,267

488,990

201,865
363.828

94.355 (1,695.198) 16,220.190

(957.615)

(95.892)

(92.150)

(1.830,710) 10,692,822
•  - 1,074,295

(64.488) 1.186.537

94.355 (1,895.198) 12.953.654

3,266,536

24,438
(1.410)

615.231

Total

S 4,932.560
4.183,652
2,492.880
410.942

2.952.466

420,547

121.670

103.827

(1,362)
14,838
9,244
8,207

131,267

488,990

201,865
(363.828)

251.403 16.471,593

251,403

10,692,822
1,074,295
1.186.537

12.953.654

3.517.939

24.438

(1.410)

t  1.753.181 $ (258,095) $ (575,964) $ (55,342) $ 2.332.997 $ (20.659) $ 89,008 $ 24.438 $_ $ 3.289.564 $ 251.403 $ 3.540.967
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Consolidating Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Program Activities

Families In

New

Horizons for Manchester

New

Hampshire
Coalition to' Wilson Street Program Management

Transition • Limited Housing Family New Emerger>cy End Condominium Activities and

Ooeratino PartnershiDS Benefits . Outfitters Hamoshirs Housing Homelessness Association Total Fundraisino General Elimir\3tions Total

Salaries and benefits

Salaries and wages $ 2.558.139 $ $ 665.157 $ 268,372 S 1,317.006 $  198.742 S . S . S 5.007.416 $  465.765 S  683.020 $ S 6.156.201

Employee benefits 295.997 - 86,493 21,134 •  103,349 18.453 . . 527.426 49.673 73.234 • 650.333

Payroll taxes 184.481 . 45.065 20.663 89,566 10.804 . . 350.579 33.444 49.060 - 433.083

Total salaries and 3,038.617 798.715 310,169 1.509.921 227.999 5.885.421 548,882 805.314 7.239.617

benefits *

Advertising 6,290 . . 19.278 2,711 . . . 28.279 2,335 5.749 . 36.363

Bad debts 9,738 18.156 35.700 .
- - - - 63,594 - - - 63.594

Bank charges 6,610 1,052 - 6.059 - - 301 162 14.184 881 7.027 - 22.092

Condominium association
- .  • 74.029

- - -
- -

74,029
• -

(58.514) 15.515

Consultants 65.293 . 6,908 2.900 34.370 2,730 . . 112,201 13.736 18.272 . 144,209

COVID expenses 120,821 - 3.400 1.840 209.733 2,880 . - 338,674 36.824 52.646 - 428.144

Depreciation 164.519 297,577 581.779 10.101 71.229 204 1.019 536 1.126.964 166.761 88.507 - 1.382.232

Events - . . 741 •  . . 9.709 . 10,450 63,921 . . 74.371

Food . . 23.530 - 89.360 43.923 - - 156.813 - • • 156.813

Ger>eral insurance 28;263 41.652 48.808 1.924 15.164 5,786 809 9.704 152.110 16.826 11.565 - 180.501

Interest expense 44.177 85.389 154.216 494 1.315 . - - 285.591 36.525 12,175 (95.892) 238.399

Management fees 83.448 198.841 629.861 - . - - 25,465 937.615 • • (937.615) •

Meals and entertainment 1.275 - 163 138 225 • • - 1.801 192 285 - 2.278

Membership dues 9.666 . - - 283 - 500 - 10.449 1.289 1.933 - 13.671

Office supplies 40.158 3.175 5.170 6.490 15,051 950 304 . 73.298 6.841 10,075 • 90.214

Operational expenses • 96.150
- • -

60,154
- - -

156.304
• • -

156.304

Participant expenses 53.310 243 1,242 . 15,242 . 2,000 - 72.037 . • - 72.037

Postage 5.887 • 48 6 1.284 - - - 7.227 912 1,352 • 9.491

Printing 11,613 - - 3,112 6,576 - - . 21,301 2.198 3,216 - 26.715

Professionai fees 54,528 25.028 29,414 4,000 14,242 700 '• 3.200 132,112 8,677 42.254 - 183.043

Related entity expenses 1,437.332 (17.525) (617,856) 38.245 (94.889) (51.769) 351 • 693.889 • - .  (693,889) •

Rent - • • 24,800 - • - - 24,800 - 64.488 (89.288) -

Rental subsidies 285,034 . . - 16.076 . . - 301,110 . . . 301.110

Repairs and maintenance 38,612 89,485 190.511 17.050 67.934 15.300 - 40.666 459.578 56,979 31.988 (20.000) 528.545

Staff development 21,348 - - 50 1.140 400 1.495 . 24.433 2.959 4.424 - 31.816

Taxes 34.277 74,680 228.226 3.000 . 75 75 . 340,333 - - - 340.333

Technology support 114,352 478 6.943 1.376 20.249 4.972 548 158 149,076 17,247 25.620 • 191.943

Telephone 69.989 719 37.466 1.320 8.216 4.064 - 1.636 123.410 10,143 15.114 - 148,667

Travd 19.745 - - 272 1,360 - 40 . 21.417 2.767 4.134 . 28,318

Utilities 29.427 152,595 254.661 17.984 44.946 14.528 - 12.808 526.949 64.754 26.209 . 617.912

VISTA program 66.785 - - - - - • . 66.785 12,646 . - 79,431

Workers' compensation 77.390 - .  18.156 5.511 23.566 6.675 . . 131.298 - 18.678 . 149.976

Total expenses $ 6.034.654 $  972.545 $2,511,090 $ 476.862 $ 2.135.458 S  279.417 $ 17.151 $ 94.355 $ 12.523.532 $ 1,074.295 S 1.251.025 $ (1,895.198) $12,953,654

-27-
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Families in Transition

Board of Directors

Board of Directors

Scott W. Ellison, Chair

COOK, LITTLE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, PLiC, Partner

Board member since 2018

Roy Tllslev, Vice Chair

Bernstein Shur, Shareholder

Board member since 2018

Robert Bartley, Treasurer

Bartley Financial Advisor, President, CPA, CFP

Board member since 2018

Frank Sagllo, Co-Treasurer

WIPFLI, LLC, Sr. Manager Tax,

Board member since 2018

Kristi Scaipone, Secretary

First, Corporate and Foundation Relations & Field Development Strategy

Board member since 2018

Dick Anagnost, At Large

Anagnost Companies, President

Board member since 2018

Heather Whitfleld, At Large

People's United Bank, Sr. Vice President

. Board member since 2018

David Cassidy, Past Co-Chalr

Retired

Board member since 2018

Coiieen Cone,

Comcast, Vice President, Human Resources

Board member since 2018

Alison Hutcheson

Merchants Fleet, Associate Director Legal

Board member since 2018

AnnlVlarie French

NH Fiscal Policy Institute, Executive Director

Board member since 2018

Rev. 5/12/2021 RS
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Brian Hansen

Team Engineering, Project Manager

Board member since 2018

Brian Mlko)

Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner

Board member since 2018

Jack Olson

Retired

Board member since 2018

Kitten Steams

Realtor, Coidwell Banker Residential Brokerage

Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aldrlch

Dartmouth Hitchcock, Sr. Advisor Community & Relations, External Affairs

Board member since 2018

Roy Ballentlne

Ballentine Partners, LLC, Executive Chairman,'^
Board member since 2019

Sarah Jacobs

AmeriCorps/Portfolio Managers
Board member since 2018

Sean Leighton

City of fylanchester Police Department Captain
Board member since 2019

Wayne McCormick, CFP

Steward Partners Managing Director Wealth Manager

Board member since 2018

Rev. Gayle Murphy

Minister At Large

Board member since 2020

Michael McCormick

Reporting & Analytics Director/DBG Sales Operations

Board member since 2020

Michael SImoneau

Members First Credit Union, SVP, Community Outreach Officer
Board member since 2021

Chad Campbell

' SllverTech Inc., Director of Strategic Accounts
Board member since 2021

Rev. 5/12/2021 RS
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Danielle Pllska

•  First, Vice President, Finance

Board member since 2021

Robert Bonfigllo

Rise Wealth Management, Co-Founder of Rise Private Wealth Management
Board member since 2021

Melissa Szymanowskl

Coca-Cola, Human Resources, Benefits, Risk & Safety, Leadership
Board member since 2021

Stephen Norton

Solution Health, Chief Strategy Officer

Board member since 2021

Rev. 5/12/2021 RS
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Maria Devlin

ProfI le

Tenured professional with extensive experience leading teams throu^ building strategies and Initiatives to drive high performance.
Adept at developing and carrying out a strategic vision, particuioilv those thiat require buy-In from Intomol and external stakeholders.
Expertise Includes fundralslng, change management, organizatiDnal leadership, budget manegement and Improving team engagement.

Ski l ls/Expertise

Experienced with Organizational
Budgeting Including Revenue &

Expense Accountability

Organizational Agility & Complexity
Management

Teamwork and Team Building Skills

External Relationships & Partnerships
CustomorServlce Oriented .

Face of the organization
Mission Focused

Goal Oriented, Leads by Example,
Visionary and Focused

Program/Project Management Experience

President & CEO

Families In Transition-New Horizons, Manchester NH ' 06/2020 - present

The President serves as Chief Executive Officer of Families In Transition-New Horizons and will have overall strategic and operating
responsibility for staff, planning, development, management and successful implementation of programs and services, community
engagement and execution of strategic objectives and mission of the organization.

•  Estobllchlng a vision for community Impact that Is achieved through the efforts of a diverse team of high-performing leaders,
•  Responsible for overseeing the administration of programs to Include financial performance and viability, organization

mission and strategy, organlzatlorral operations, resource development and community Impact.

Chief Executive Officer

American Red Cross of NH & VT, Concord, NH 03/2008-05/2020

Responsible for representing the American Red Cross in the community. Focus externally on core mission delivery, fundraldng
and being the face of the Red Cross for the media, donors and their communities. Responsible for oversight and execution of a $5 million
operating budget

Created overall strategic planning and oversight for 3 major transitions In Northern New England. Oversight of execution of
staff and board Integration.
Lead organizational goals for service delivery, fundralslng and external relations - for the past 4 years have met or exceeded
key performance indicators and revenue taiBet of $1.2 - 2.5 million annuaily
Lead dual-state (NH/VT) operations vi/lth a team of 24 PTEs plus 1100 volunteers at multiple locations - in August 2019,
began merger with Red Cross of Maine to align staffing, prorasscs, procedures for a new 3-state re^on
Build lasting community partnerships with local corporations & groups to ensure mission delivery such as - Installing over
12,000 free smoko alarms In homos across the two states In 5 years
Ensuro that volunteers, youth and young adults are engaged and retained-93% ofour volunteer workforce Is engaged In
providing at least one hour of volunteer time to mission within the last fiscal year

Interim Executive Director

Director of Public Affairs

Children's Alliance of New Hampshire, Concord, NH 01/2007-03/2008

The Children's Alliance (now New Futures Kids Count) advocates, educates and collaborates to Improve the health and wellness
of NH's residents. Collaborated with Board of Directors on organlzatfonal budget, development goals, policy initiatives and
organizational values and mission. Responslbie for all operations: MR, P&L, Board Devclopm^t, public policy advocacy Initiatives
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M a

•  Organhed the Children's Advocncy Network - a diverse group of organizations and Individuals - dedicated to Improving the
life of children and fanillles through legislative and public policy Initiatives, such as statewide kindergarten, statewide
children's health Insurance, greater access to Children In Need of Services (CHINS) and maintaining access to Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) benefits

•  Acting as the Interim Executive Director supported by 3 paid staff and a board of directors with 12 members
«  Stabilized fundraislng, operations and personnel to ensure positive transition to now leadership
•  In partnership with the Annie E. Casey Foundation, created & released the 2007 Kids Count data book for New Hampshire

on annual report which tracks child wellbeing. Data which Is used to enrich local and state-level discussions around policy
change,

Olrectorof Annual Giving

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH 10/2003-01/2007

Responsible for Increasing annual giving from ̂ HU alumni, family and friends through personalized outreach,
donor relationship building, and targeted fundraislng events.

•  Successful $50,000 asks to build stronger scholarship program for students at university, developed moves management
plans for donors to increase donor engagement and support

•  Managed annual giving program Including direct mall, Telefund (connecting with alumni through current students to raise
funds via phono calling) leadership and dass gMng, faculty/staff giving, dass gift and related events

•  Coordinated all stewardship activities for University President and VP, Development with average gifts over $15,000
. • Managed stewardship for all scholarship donors with average gift of over $1,000

Director of Development & Program Services

Make-A-Wlsh Foundation of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH 05/1996-10/2003

•  Suaessfully developed. Implemented and executed a new volunteer management program to grow active volunteer base
from 100 to over 500 volunteors throughout the state ''

•  Managed & grew spedal events fundraislng from 15 events annually to over 160 events grossing over $1 million annually
•  Managed communications and pubiicirclatlons - created newsletters, monaged website, pitched wish stories to media -

Increasing the number of families reached to grant over 250 wishes each year.

Education

Southern New Hampshire University, fWanchester, NH Springfield College, Manchester, NH (satellite)
Master of Science, Organizational Leadership Master of Science In Huimn Services, Community Psychology

University of Maine, Orono, ME

Badielor of Science, Child Development & Family Relations

Additional Certifications and Development
•  CertlfiedPorsonal Tralner, National Academy of Sports Medicine, 2019

•  Adult First Ald/CPfVAED-2-year Certification, American Red Cross, 2018

•  Leadership of Non-ProfIt Organizations, Graduate Certificate, ̂ uthem New Hampshire University, 2008

Honors& Achievements

•  2015 Community Service Award Winner, Turkish Cultural Centerof NH

•  2014 Excellence In Non-Profit Award Redplent from NH Business Review
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Maria Devl in

2013 Business Leader of the Year Pinnade Award Winner, Greater Concord Chamber of Commerce
2013 Presenter at the international Disaster Management Exhibition in Istanbul, Turkey

2013 Recognized os one of the Top Women-Led Non-Profits by Business NH Magazine

Community
Women's Resource Group founding member, American Red Cross 3/19-present
Governor's Council on Diversity and Inclusion, B/W-present
Waypoint NH (formerly known as Child & Family Servtdes of NH) Trustee, 1/2015-present
Volunteer New Hampshire. Board Member 2014-2016
NH Volunteer Organizations Active In Disaster (NH VOAD), Board Member 2014-2016
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Kristen McGuigan, LICSW

Kducndon

Boston UNiYBBsmf/rYMGSooao, MA SBpnmBsn2006-ls^YZ009
Masters of ̂aJ Work
RlVnuiCOlJJICB,NASllUA,NH Sbptembbr2004-MayZ006
Bachelor ofArts In Human Development
•  Minor In Social Work

New HAMPSinta Tbchnicai-Institutb, Concord, NH Srptkmuhr zooz- May 2004
Assodcrtes Degreo In Early Childhood Education

Ueonsad Independent Clinical Social Workm- in Massachusetts and New Hampshire
Rvperionco
Pamiubs IN Transition, MANaissTER, NH
Oil/d and Famlfy Program Manager Octobbr 2016-Prbsbmt
•  Provide Individual therapy to chlldren/adolesceitsc and In-home hunily raunsoUng
•  Supporting famnies whom struggle with subctanco use, trauma and homolessncss
•  FacUltiatp therapeutic play groups and parenting groups

Program Manager/ Child and Family Therapist Octoder 20O9- OcroB&uZOlZ
•  Provide trauma-Informed therapeutic services to homeless children and families
«  Manage the trauioa-lnformed therapeutic pi-eschool end alterschool program
•  Provide supervision to clinical staff and early educatora whose responsibility levels vaiy
•  Complete psychosodol assessments, develop treatment plans, and DECA/BBRS assessment tools
•  Provide Individual thorapy, family therapy, parenting workshops, staff trainings, gieup therapy and crisis intervention

PSVatOTUmiArr ASSOdATaSOPNORTItllKADINO, Nortiiiusadikg, ma JulyZois-Presbnt
Ucensod Independent Clinical Social Worker

•  Provide individual and family counseling to cfalldrec, adolescences, and adults -
•  Provide sendee to adotosconces during the tranlsltion into college and adulthood
•  OffbrartandpIaytherapysorviccstochlldi'ORagosS-lSycarsoId
•  Conduct psycboihcrapy assessments and formulate treatment plans

Ellis Mcmomai, Boston, MA . , OctobbrZ012-May2014
Clinical Supervisor

«  Oversee dlnlcal services fbr children being offered In the agency, induding supervision to dinical staff and interns
■  Provide therapeutic services to children and families enrolled in EUls's educational programming
•  ' Enroll and oversee services for children that have open cases witit the Department of Children and Famill^
•  Offdrln-house trainings and on-going support to early dilldhood providers
•  Create and Implement behavior management strategics to ensure success for children within the programs

MOORE CBNTnnScnvKZSlNC, Manchester, NH Novembib 2000-Octobir 2009
Case Manager, Children Services
•  Assist families with children diagnosed with developmental disabilities and pnrtldpate in crisis Intervention planning
•  OvgryAff and rhlld budget to provide services through the in Home Support program
•  Attend dtlidren's Individual education plan O^P) meetings and collaborate with school systems on behalf of children's

education

BASTBRSRAtSR8S«DEtrnALPACILrryCo-0CCURmKGUmT,MANaiESTnR,NB SErrBMBHR 2008-May 2009

Master level Clinical Intern
•  Participate In Individual and group therapy with adolescents wtti) substance abuse diagnoses
•  Develop curriculum for group therapy
•  Invoivcmentwiti) drug court and the New Hampshire court system
•  Participated in training for Therapeutic Crisis Intorvention

High Plain Elementary, Andovbr, MA SsptemuerZOO? -MayZOOB
Master Level Qlnical Intern

•  UodlncUTldual,eroup,andfaTnItytherapy8essloQscmployingavarietyortechnlques
•  Provldod emotional and bohavioral support to clients with autism, ADHD, OCD, PDD-NOS, GAS and depression
•  Solved as liaison between staff'and families on mental health Issues end child development

TralHlnes
•  CertifledcralncrlnSulcldePrcvcntionlhroughNAMlCNatlonalAssodatlonofMentallUnoss) 2010
•  Certified trainer of Dr. Brazdton Touchpolnts child devolopment model (Harvair] HnlvorsHy) 2011
•  Ccrtined Disaster Case Manager Supervisor (Catholic CUariUcs] March2014
•  Faculty member participating on a team with mental health professionals, to help implement the Trauma-lnforrocd

Early Education and Core Systems Brealdhrough Colkborntive. Created and Implemonted trouma-Iuronned curriculum
training to early chUdliood oducaters. (Boston PublicHsaltb Commission, Boston MA) Aumisr 2013-Sbptbmbbr2014
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Anco-Elise Bryant

Objective
Seeking a posidon as Housing Advocate

Educadon

Gordon College ' Wcnbam.MA
Bachelor ofArts in Psycbologf and Sociology GPA3.57 May'2010
Honors: harrington Sthclartfor ocadifTucpuformance in, and wtpact on, ths P^tokgy deparUnont and eatt^tts; one student

Jhmeaehd^rtmmt chosen; X)ean*sJJst:graduate am laude

Experience
Supportive Servicea Case Manager
Someryille Homeless Coalition, SomerviUe, MA Mardi 2014-Present
•  l^ponsiblc for an active case load of 12-18 individuals and fiunilies who fbcmedy experienced

homelessness and now are in recovery from substance abuse and/or mental liealth
diagnoses

•  Provide services in the home and community as outhaed on an Individual Service Plan (ISP) in
conjunction widi supports to promote retention of permanent housing, sobriety, and symptom
mana^ment

• Respond to crisis siiuations including relapse) and utilize Hann Reduction tactics'to promote client
safety .

'  • Produce documentation of all client interactions and maintain up^to-date ISPs and assessments
• Attend and participate in team meering? and assist in stceamliningdient services tluxiugh the

development and iqidatiag of protocols and pohcies, as ■well as providing truining for new case
nrtanagers through shadowing opportunities

Supported Employment Spednlist i
Genesis Behavioral Health, Laconia, NH ^ January 2013- Febru^ 2014

•  Supported ̂  active case load of 25t30 individuals with' Severe and Persistent Mental Illness (^MI)
primly with employment search and school related activities in the commaeity using an
Individualized Service Plan (ISP) to provide optunai treatment within a ceam approach

• Documented all interactions with clients to maintain continuity of care within and, if necessary,
outside of agency

•  Provided emeigericy servicea such as Crisis IntecvcotiQn, support to local hospital cmec^ncy rooms,
and/or contact of local authorities when necessary

•  Facilitated roore effective, streamlined processes for working in conjunction ■with local as
well as wtbio the Supported Employment team in the areas of service provision to clients and new
hire training

Research Data Coordloator
Institute for Community Inclusion, Boston, IvtA . November 2010- December 2011

•  Conducted c^arch related activities (e.g. iaterviews, transcribing, literature reviews) on two projects
focused on aiding individuals widi Hisahtlitipy

• Worked as a member of a research team and attended, and sometimes led, team meetings

P^eretim availabk request
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Genevieve P. Martin

Related Work Expcrlcngft
PACE Career Academy, Pcmbrolm, NH
Student Support Mootager
March 2020> CuiroDt

• PacUitate group fluporviaicai and support team meeting
wccGcIy and topcrvlee Bacbdor level social wbricw

• Developed and fedliiated social emotional Icamloe
curriculum far ddll group

• Ovcreaw and managod tiw rtudoot bod7 coUatofBl
contacts snd aitended team meetings

MaasftchnsettB lVIciitoi> The Montor Netrvoife,
Lawrence, MA
Program Recndter
December 2017- May 2019

• Quelifi' candidates to bo thwopoutio fosta parent?
• Complete home evaluationa and personnel obcokB
• Provide initial pre-eervice sidil dcvdopjumt to fiastcr

psroDts

• Host field imirketing and infcrmatlon event#

Famify Centered SpeciQlist
May 2016-Decotnhia-2017

• Provide skill building and family centered, stnmgth-
bascd intcrvontlQna to aehieve long lean family
proaervation

• Assure documentotion and records are complete,
confidential, submitted accoiately nod timely.

• Make refaanls to services and provide aftacme ^
plaaning fbr fimidly.

McLean Hospital, Bolmont, MA
Communify Residence Counselor-Dialectical Behavior
Therapy Unit
Peimtary 2015-April 2016

• Mllou siqjpqrt and moaflgomcnt to females ogcs 13-
20yeat8 old with onergingtTBitsof Borderline
Personality Disorder

• Lead evening groups such as; building mastay,
oontribuiion, and game night '

• Teach (he ft«r main oon^onents ofDBT

Orange Rcgtonal Medical Center, Mlddtetown, NY
Psychtatrlo Techjdcian-Behavioral ffealth Unit
January 2014-Jaouaiy 2015

• Perform patient care tasks under the directioo ofa
Roglslcrcd Professional Nurte

• Pacflitated groups/meetings fbr patients

• Be ft support eystem fbr tiie paticals

Relfltod Intonaship Kacpcyifinnp
VA Medical Center, M<md«ai« io.

Suicide Prevention Coordinator- Internshlv
Scptemba 2019-May 2020

• ftoyldeoatreardisupportto Voteranswhooontacted
the Cnjds Hotline

• ̂uate program progress end outcome# and utilizes
data to ccffltinucwsly modify improve tto program end
pnx*^ and prcp^ and maintains admiitistn^
records

•  clinical care and assesses the compliancewith SuiwdoProvontioo programming requirements

University of New Hampshire, Social Work
Hcpartiaen^ Durham, NH
Craduate Research Asslitant
S<ptember 2019- 2020

• Ewunlne a caw ofHydro ftacWng and imturol gastapping in NH regarding environmental Justfco
• Interview community activist leadnt* or

cavlfonmentfll change.
• Study the school to prison pipelmo md the imoact of

race on discipline nica.

Ttmboriano MHdIe SchooL Tlaistotv, NH
StudentAssistance Cotms^or^ Internship
S<^tember2018-M^2019

• Meet with students individually and In small groups
• Assi^ hi ̂ rdihating school wide activities and

distnct initiatives

• Attend and participate in substance misuse Drevontioo
coalition meetings

£?erdfications
• Youth Mental Health Aid Certified
•  CPRAFhstAidCertified
•  Girls-On-'IheRnn.NHCoaoh
•  ̂Wenting&MBiu®ingChisis Situations
•  Faodty(>iitaredTreotinesnt Certified

Memberships
• Na0*oi»UAaiocmtion<rfSo<rialWoAor8,NH(aaptBr
•  UNHPhi Alpha Somal Work Ehnor Society

Univecsity Of Now Hampshire
Master of Social Work

Education
State University ofNow Yoit ot Ooneseo

Bocholor ofArts in Psydiology; Mlnon Sociology
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FIT/NHNH, Ibc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Conh"act

Maria Devlin President/CEO 183,600 0% -

Kristen McGuigan VP of Clinical Services 82,620. 5% 4,131

Ann-Ellse Bryant Dir of Housing & Support Svcs 70,000 15%. 10,500

Genevieve Martin ProRram Manager 52,000 20% 10,400
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ComitilNslonrr

Christine L. Sanianiello

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/yiSiOl^ OF ECONOMiC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0.1301
603-271.9'174 I-800.852-334S E.vi. 9474

Fox: 603-271-4230 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964 «\vw.dhhs,nh.eov

August 12. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
•  t

REQUEStED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and.
Housing Stability, to amend existing Sole Source contracts with the vendor listed in bold below for
the ongoing provision of Permanent Housing'and Supportive Services to individuals and families
who are experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by
exercising contract renewal .options by increasing the total price limitation by $71,374 from
$281,462 to $352,836 and by extending the completion dates from August 31. 2020 to August 31.
2021 effective September 1. 2020 or upon Govemor and Council approval, whichever is later.
100% Federal Funds.

The following original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on August 14.
2019, Item #9.. .

Vendor Name Vendor Code Area Served
Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised.

Amount

FIT/NHNH, Inc.,
Manchester. NH

157730-80.01 Manchester $71,374 $71,374 $142,748 .

FIT/NHNH. Inc.,
Manchester. NH

157730-8001
Merrimack

County
$105,327 $0 $105,327

FIT/NHNH, Inc..
Manchester. NH

157730-B001 .
Strafford .
County

$104,761 $0 $104,761

Total: $281,462 $71,374 $352,836

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and" continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between slate fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

The Dcporlment of Health and Hmnon Senjices' Mission is to join comnuinilics and famiUcs
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc TBD $208,314 $0 $208,314

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc

TBD $73,148 $59,478 $132,626

2022 - 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $0 $11,896 $11,896

Total $281,462 $71,374 $352,836

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to specify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application
process, prior to the grant award being issued. Based on the application evaluation process, the'
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development directs the Departrnent to provide grant
awards and the specific amounts to vendors.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing Permanent Housing programs that
deliver rental and leasing assistance; service access; and supportive services to Individuals and
families who are experiencing homelessness.

The programs seiVe individuals and families experiencing homelessness who would
otherwise likely be left in unsafe situations without permanent housing. Approximately thirly-eight
(38) individuals will be served from September 1, 2020 to August 31, 2021.

Using the Housing First model, vendors develop Stabilization and Crisis Management plans
and facilitate each participant's movement Into sustained permanent housing. Additionally,
vendors work to maximize each participant's ability to live more independently by providing
connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor contracted sen/ices using the following tools:

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•' Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information and
income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  All vendors funded through these contracts will report through the timely and accurate
entry of data into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System.
This will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2.,
Renewal, of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreerrient of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer
permanent housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulr^erable individuals and
families, in unsafe and deadly situations, without a safety net. Additionally.'lf data Is not collected
as required by the contracts, the Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations,
which could result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and
supportive service programs..

Area served: Manchester and Merrimack and Stafford Counties.

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267. FAIN #NH0026L1T011912

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program. '

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing VI

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing VI Contract

This 1*' Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing VI contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and FIT/NHNH, Inc.. (hereinafter referred
to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 122 Market Street. Manchester
NH. 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14. 2019, (item #9). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Forrn P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2., Renewal., the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or rhodify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

8/31/21.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$142,748.
I

3. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precederil to Payment, Section 1. Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1,2.4. Grant Numbers NH0023L1T0011611 (September 1. 2019 through August 31, 2020);
■  ̂ NH0026L1T011912 (Septernberl, 2020 - August 31, 2021)

4. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Subsection 1.2.
Paragraph 1.2.7, by adding Subparagraph 1.2.7.2, to read:

1.2.7.2. September 1, 2020 - August 31. 2021, not to exceed $71,374 .

5. Modify Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Subsection 1.2.
Paragraph 1.2.8 to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

September.1, Septernberl, Total
2019 through 2020 through Cumulative
August 31, August 31, Amount

2020 2021

Description

1.2.8.1 Supportive Services:

1.2.8.2 Administrative Expenses:

1.2.8.3 ' Total Program Amount:
1.2.8.4 Vendor Match (25%):

$69,134

$2,240

$69,134

$2,240

$136,258

$4,480

$71,374

$17,844

$71,374

$17,844

$142,746

$35,688

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-17-A01

Amendmenl 01

Page 1 of 3
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Dale August 4. 2020



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing VI

All terms and conditions of the Contracl not lnconsistent with this Amendment remain in full force and
effect. This amendment ehall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

August 4. 2020

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

OitUd'h
Name

Title:

I Oi Ii5
FIT/NHNH, inc.

Namp: Maria Devlin
Title: President

FIT/NHNH. inc.

SS.2020-6HS-04-PERMA-l7-Ot

Amendment 01

Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing VI

The preceding Amendmenl, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

08/10/20

Date Name;
jj(l0. Catherine Pinos, Attorney

.  • ✓ .

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendmenl was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE •

Date Name:
. Title:

FIT/NHNH, Inc. Amendmonl #1

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-17-01 Pago 3 of 3



Jeffrey A. Meyen
CocnmiMioner

Christine U Santiniello
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9474

F«x:-603-27M230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

July 17. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide Permanent
Housing programs and Supportive Services to homeless individuals and families through the Federal
Continuum of Care Program in an amount not to exceed $281.462.-effective per the dates indicated in
the table below, upon Governor and Executive Council approval, through the completion dates indicated
below. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor

Name

Project
Name

Vendor

n
Location

Effective

Date

Completion
Date

SFY

2020

SFY

.2021

Total

Amount

FIT/NH

NH. Inc.

Permanent

Housing VI
157730-

B001 Manchester 9/1/19 8/31/20 $59,478 $11,896 $71,374

FIT/NH

NH. Inc.

Concord

Community
Permanent

Housing

157730-

B001

Merrimack

County 10/01/19 9/30/20 $78,995 $26,332 $105,327

FIT/NH

NH, Inc.

. Dover
Permanent

Housing

157730-

B001
Strafford

County
11/1/19 10/31/20 $69,841 $34,920 $104,761

Total $208,314 $73,148 $281,462

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts In State
Fiscal Years (SFY) 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the.Budget
Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $208,314

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $73,148

Total $281,462
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EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because federal regulations require the Department to s^cify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process,
prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The application process
and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start'date of a grant is based
on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This results in Continuum of
Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests, occurring in various months
throughout the year.

The purpose of these requests is for the provision of Permanent Housing programs that shall
deliver rental/leasing assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative
services.

Collectively, these vendors have a target to provide permanent housing and supportive sen/ices,
to a minimum of thirty-eight (38) participants from September 1, 2019 through October 31, 2020.

The attached agreements represent three (3) of thirty (30) total annual agreements, many of
which have renewal dates dispersed throughout the calenda'r year, with vendors who are located
throughout the state, to ensure ongoing, statewide delivery of housing services through New Hampshire's
Continuum of Care Program.

Using the "Housing First" model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the Vendors will facilitate participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream sen/ices to maximize the participant's ability to
live more independently.

HUD established the Continuum of Care concept to . support communities in their efforts to
address the problems of housing instability and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and
strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main, purposes:

•  A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

•  A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis. ^

•  An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure contract compliance and
vendor performance:

•  Annual compliance reviews shall be performed that include the collection of data relating to
' compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

•  Statistical reports shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded vendors, including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars.

•  All vendors funded for rapid re-housing, transitional, permanent or coordinated entry housing,
and/or outreach/supportive services will be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry
in the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they are required
by law to use ari alternate means of data collection. The NH Homeless Management
information System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs funded through these contracts.
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As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of these agreements, the parlies have the option to extend contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parlies and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize these requests. Permanent Housing
and Supportive Services for individuals and families, who are experiencing housing instability and/or
homelessness, may not be available in their communities, and there may be an increase in demand for
services placed upon the communities' local welfare authorities and other human-services providers. It
may also cause individuals and/or families to not have access to housing, and therefore, experience
homelessness.

*

Area served; City of Manchester and Merrimack and Stafford Counties; a minimum of thirty-eight
(38) individuals will be served collectively.

Source of. funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Office of Community Planning and Development, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267.

In the event that the- Federal funds become no longer available. General funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted.

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Dcimrtinent of Health and tinman Services' Mission is to join communilies and families
in providing opporlunities for cilizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (versloo S/8/15)
Subject: Continuum of Care. Permanent Housing VI Program. SS'2020-BHS-Q4-PERMA-17

Notice: This agreement and all of its anachmenls shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identifted to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT _

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I Stale Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
FIT/tJHNH, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

122 Market Street

Manchester, NH 03101

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)641-9441

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

August 31, 2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$71,374

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature ^

\uX4JUUK.
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maureen Beauregard, President

1.13 Acknowledgement: State ofNew Hampshire, County of Hllsborough

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in.block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated In block 1.12.

13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
RUTH A. SYR£K« Notary Public

My Comiiilaaloft Btplroa BcptOTber 6,2023

I. i;3.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Ruth Syrek. Admin, Asst. Notary Public

1.14. &t^c Agency Signatdre

Date:

1.15 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory

Q\(fchr. Oi.EX
1.16 Approval by the N.'l^^^partmcnl of Administration, D[visia(i of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

7 Approval by ̂ Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) Of applicable)

On: y/j.l JQ£>1^
1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council Ofapplicable)

V
By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The StateofNcw Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I. I ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHrSIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of (he Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, tn which case
(he Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
I.M ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the.
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, (he continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropnated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement Immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account idehtified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
OS the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months afler the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effon to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereundcr
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, In the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, mapis, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawing, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and docuihents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
,or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers arid employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out bO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the Slate, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than % 1,000,000pcr occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certiricate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting O^iccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor; cenificate(s) of
insurance for ail renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
dale of each of the insurancis policies. The ccrtificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensaiion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment ofnny Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAJVCR OF BREACH. No failure by the Slate to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in >^ting signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or f^eral law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicabie to Ail Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date;,submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b). US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.^

1.5. ' The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws.
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.7. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
(Management Information System (NH HfMIS). Prograrhs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. .Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Cbntractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless Individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency. Permanent Housing. PH VI. FIT. due 9/1/19

FIT/NHNH, Inc.PHVl ExMMA Contractor InltJat*.
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2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program. Emergency Solutions Grants (6SG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Housing Program consisting of thirteen (13) permanent
housing units serving twenty (20) homeless individuals with mental illness and/or substance abuse
disorders, and which includes, but is not limited to:

/

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain'housing; and

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive

. Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the comrhunity independently.

2.3. -The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure Ck)C
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homeiessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish "at risk of homeiessness" status.of each individual or family who receives CoC
homeiessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
fife. may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim senrice provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of.household.

FfT/NHNH. Inc.PHVI ExhlUlA Contrsclor Initials.
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence.
or sexual assault or stalking, \Arhich would Include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence. Including
emails, volcemaijs, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge Is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the.following documentation of annual income;

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To th~e extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g.. employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period

.  following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-
homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.6.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and Including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F);and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement In 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.T.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including Inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program.participants was adjusted as necessary.

FIT/NHNH. Inc. PH VI E*MWt A Contractor Initial) '
SFY.2020-2021 ^ Julv16. 2019
SS-2020-eHS-0*^RMA-17 Pago 3 ofS . Po" ' '



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Qroanizational conflict-of-interest requirements In 24 CFR 576.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts recuirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements In 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:.

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g):

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b);

2.6.3. Affirmativelv Furthering Fair Housing by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD; and

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality.- In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual 'or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are

.  retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state'or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reportina Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

FIT/NHNH, Inc. PH VI / Ej(W)ltA CooWKttr Inlttol#
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3.1.1. Annual Performance Report fAPR): Within Ihirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing In particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NORA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed In section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS. including training in data security.and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to atterid such meetings five (5)
working days In advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performanco Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the applicable HUD Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed In all applicable HUD
regulations Including, but not limited to. those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550; and

•5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
- Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS. or designee. may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1 ..Exhibit A.
in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule. 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a permanent housing prograrh as outlined in Section 2.2. Exhibit A
and other written HUO policies and directives as appropriate.

,6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Program participants offered the option of voluntary participation In vendor-provided mental
health and/or substance abuse treatment; and

6.2.1.2. Program participants provided with individualized'voluntary treatment and care plan which
includes targeted case management needs assessment identifying goals the individual has
chosen to pursue.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and^timely reporting as detailed in Section 3., Program
Reporting Requirements. Exhibit A.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Housing Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37, Block
1.8, Price Limitation and for the time period specified below, i.

1.2. This Agreement Is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA). as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 1pO%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0023L1T0011811-

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. September 1, 2019-August 31. 2020. nottoexceed $71,374

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $69,134

1.2.8.2. Administrative Expenses; $2.240

1.2.8.3. Total program amount: . $71,374

1.2.8.4. Vendor Match (257o): $17,844

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compliance with
■  funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.
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2.3. If the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United Slates in "Standards for Audit of Govemmental
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions." within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Project Costs: Payment Schedule: Review by the State

3.1. Project Costs; As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean all expenses
directly or Indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in apcordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24.CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are Subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24
CFR 578.07(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and-policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be.documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
.  twenty-five (25) percent of funds or In-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match

must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
the Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Pavment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures Incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Eligibility. Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as specified in this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act {HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). in an amount
and time period not to exceed a^s specified in. Section 1.2. Exhibit B.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount.of each requested disbursement along with a payrnent request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the Sta^e, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit 8.,
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

housinQsuDDortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep , records of their activities related to Department
programs and sen/ices, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information if requested byithe State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report. Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any Items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.;

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of nonrcompliance with
any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed In Exhibits A and B, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

rrr/NHNH, Inc. PH VI Exhibiie Cootrsctof imttAis
SFY»2020-202l 'Julv16 2019
SS-2020^HS-04-PER(M-17 PftfleSoflO D«I5. '



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit B

4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Genera) Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line Items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expense Elialbllltv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. ODeratino Expenses: .

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses Include:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing;

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and Insurance {including properly and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment. |

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing \\t)ere the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. Supportive Services

5.3.1.- Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578.53(a)(2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
pdrticipant(s) are eligible costs;
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness. including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
person(s} under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless.individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing:

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been teamed or have been lost during course of ,physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must t>e necessary to assist the program participant to function

^  Independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict'
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling; Individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and management • of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems; .

5.3.2.12.' Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing Immediate support and Intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatlent detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are Ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15);
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies:

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24CFR 578.53(e)(1) - (16)
of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or subreclpient, eligible
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

, 5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional licensure or certiflcations
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless Individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be: -

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit If the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor. In relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

. 5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one mpnth's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant.' For Leaslno funds
only; Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing, must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.4.9. The Gonlractor must provide one of the foDosving types of rental assistance: Tenant-based.
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to.
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subreclplents may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or teriantrbased rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon

, expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
• by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs Include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not Include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to, necessary expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.T. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may Include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job Includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following:
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
.  those budgets and schedules;

5.5.12.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program-include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. at>ove. Exhibit B.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment. Insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings: and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasing:

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organizationfs). or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.
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5.6.1. Requirements:

5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for.all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing Individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for Individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account the location, size. type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HDD-determined fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6:1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord in
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7; Program Income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8)

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HDD-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly: funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from, money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or sen/ices. -
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however.
•  the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone. Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Management Svstem

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of. and accounting for. grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.

mFIT/NHNH. Inc. PH VI ' ExWWl B Con»«ctof InWala _
sFY»202o-202i ^ JulylS, 2019
SS-2020-eHS-04-PERMA.l7 PagelOofiO Data, '



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

RPFriAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: the Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows

1. Compllanc© with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination; EligibliUy determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forrns required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that ail applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance svilh Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Stale may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase, services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In which event nevy rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original ewdence of costs such as /.
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the

• Department.
8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of

services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records,
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^lcal Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within M days after the close ofthe
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non .
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.

. Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
.  they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shallnot

disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection wlh their official duties and. for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian. /iQi^
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shaii survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
■ times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allONvable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (svhtten. video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with.any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employmont Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If (he recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit.an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that Its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fev^r than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cerl.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorlgin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition' Threshold as defined In 46
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of •

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform Its employees In writing. In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section.
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

'  (c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
sut)contracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
sut>contracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identiHed, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Coiitractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms arid conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. shall
mean that period of time or'that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FE06RA17STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall t>6 deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Previsions Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C.1

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4. Conditional Nature of Aoreement. is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or. In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected-by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates,, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part.' In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the

,  State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account{s) identified in block ,1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended bv adding the following language:

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Stale, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination; the Contractor shall, .within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in Its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of ttie
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

iMiExhibit C-1 - Revisions/Excopbons to Standard Contract Laneuaoe Contractor Iniliais.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS.
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-

. contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Slate
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Sen/ices
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1;2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may bel imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. , Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

/W^Exhibit 0 -Certificclion regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials 1'''
Workplace Requirements-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
•  subparagraph 1.4!2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5. and 1.6.

''

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16. 2019
Date Name: Maureen Beauregard

President

lisilExhibit D - Certiflcellon regarding Drug Free Vendor initials.
WofUpiaco Requirements -e onnn
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US department of AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): '
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement. Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or ori behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memfc>er of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails tO file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16, 2019 fTXt/uiCl/]
Dat® Name: Maureen Beauregar

President

Exttibit E - Ceftification Regaixfirtg Lobbying Vendor Inlliati
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exttlblt F

CERTiFICATiON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBiLITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification, the certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS) .
determiniation whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction. '

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant Knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective prirnary participant learns
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction,* "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." 'lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarmenl. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in ail lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded

^ from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each

. participant may, but Is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
. in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knov/ledge and

■  Ejtftibil F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension ' Ver>dor Initials.
And Other Responsibility Matters , , om-iQ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal gbvemrnent. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records; making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by subrnitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certlflcdtion Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16. 2019
Date NarrfSnyiaureen Beauregard ^

President

Exhibll F - Certlflcatlon Regarding Debarment. Suspension Vendor Initials
ArxJ Other Responsibility Matters i i
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and'1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: .

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
feference. the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in ehiployment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunrty Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or. national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683.1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In.federally assisted education programs;

♦ the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity;'Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt, 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency avyards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment. .

Exhibit G
Vendor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16, 2Q19
Date Nam^ Maureen Beauregard ^

Title: President

ExhlMt G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part 0 - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compilance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, inc."

July 16. 2019
'N^arneTMaiirAAri f(paiirr»aardDate 'Narrte: Maureen Beauregard
Title, presidient

&CiiWtH-Cerlificaiion Regarding Vendor lnlllals|
Environmenlal Tobacco Smoke . _ . _
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section T.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and.
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors ahd agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meanlno given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

8. "Data Aggreoatlon" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health'
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. /Ajhi

3/2014 ExWWl I Vendoc lnitlals|N//
Healih Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement _
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Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164:103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by.
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of'any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under.Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

Exhibit! Vendor tnllial
Health Insurance Portability Act

3/2014

Business Associate Agreement , ,
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
'•* remedies.

e. If the Covered-Entity' notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
'  ' after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected

health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

. 0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.
1  . • I;

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d.. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or •
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

. e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 fl)- The Covered Entity
shall be considered a .direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiviM PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
' Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures'with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Busiriess Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return of destruction infeasible. for so long as Busine;
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

{A) ObHaations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to.individuals in accordance svith 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify. Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section

.  164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to this Secretary.

(6) IVIIscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.^
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s} or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term' or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall sun/ive the termination of the Agreement.

Ihf WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Name of the VendTha^State .

Signature of Authorize Representative signature of Authorized Represefttative

Ok t 1^ I fyji 1 j Maureen Beauregard
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Reoresentative

Date

President
Title of Authorized Representative

July 16, 2019

Date

3/2014 Exhibit I

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 6 of 6

Vendor initialsitials

Date July 16, 2019



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCQUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and'lransparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and award^ on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements: ,
1. Nariie of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
.7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual groiss revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC,

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's-representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with ell applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act. .

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH. Inc.

July 16. 2019
Date f^ame.'^aureen Beauregard'

Title: President
Name.' Maureen Beauregard ^

ExhIWi J - Certification Regarding the Federnl Fundinfl Vendor Initials
Accounlability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance «n.«r\
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FORMA

As the Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, 1 certify that the responses to the
. below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is; 825360399

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHHSn 10T13
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized -access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

.Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, sutxjontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives

■ DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident^ means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractorlnilials
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, .disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PL PFI,
PHI or confidential DHhiS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can l>e used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

'9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103. .

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, rriaintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated In this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
.of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable, storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices .to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devjce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure-the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and $ut>-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data vwll
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data \wll be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, qthenvise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the Slate's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure. -

B. Oisposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the

■  Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon, request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this ^
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor wdll maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. the Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
.program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sut>contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Aissociate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) vyith the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement..

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Departrnent and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes-of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), hIpaa Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire netviork.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. dtx)ve.
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if enervated and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

■ g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used ;and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not t>e
shared with anyone. End Users vmII keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data . •
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSSREPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is Involved in Incidents:

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; ,

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and

sii>vs. Ust updala 10/09/18 ExhibitK ContractorlntUa
DHHS Infofmaiion

n.,. July 16. 2019
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrlvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSlnformatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

M)
DHHS Information 3/

SecurityRoquirements ini.i oniQ
Pflofl Q ofs Date JUiy ID, 1U

V5 Last update 10/09/18 EkWUH K Contractor initials
" tHS Informat"

irity Requirer
Pago 9 of 9



DocuSign Envelope ID: 23A4B1CB-E58E-47ED-9804-296279C6DE5E

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing contract is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
FIT/NHNH, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14, 2019 (Item #9), as amended on October 21, 2020 (Item #13), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

■  10/31/22

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$324,220

3. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Permanent Housing Program, Section 1, Provisions
Applicable to All Services, Paragraph 1.9, to read:

1.9 The Department shall annually conduct a review, onsite or remotely at DHHS's discretion,'
of the Contractor's participant files and at least one month of financial data to ensure
compliance with the contractual objectives.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers: NH0053L1T001808 (November 1, 2019 through October 31, 2020).

NH0053L1T001909 (November 1, 2020 - October 31, 2021).

NH0053L1T002010 (November 1, 2021 -October 31, 2022).

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, Subparagraph 1.2.7.1, to read:

1.2.7.1. November 1, 2019 - October 31, 2022, not to exceed the amount specified in Form P-
37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation.

kl)
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A02

A-S-1.0

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

Page 1 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date
7/22/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 23A4B1CB-E58E-47ED-9804-296279C6DE5E

6. :Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.8, to read;

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

Description November 1,
2019 through
October 31,

2020

November 1,
2020 through
October 31,

2021

November 1,
2021 through
October 31,

2022

Total

Cumulative

Amount

1.2.8.1 Operations: $81,042 $83,473 $88,548 $253,063
1.2.8.2 Supportive Services: $21,264 $21,264 $21,264 $64,092
1.2.8.3 Administration: $2,455 $2,455 $2,455 $7,365
1.2.8.4 Total Program Amount: $104,761 $107,192 $112,267 $324,220

1.2.8.5 Vendor Match (25%): $26,190 $27,412 $28,681 $82,283

7. Add Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2 Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A02

A-S-1.0

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Page 2 of 4

MJ)
Contractor Initials

Date
t/Tz/TUTI
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective November 1, 2021 upon the date of Governor
and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

7/23/2021

^DocuSlgned by:

— eDS0S4FFEC£04B4...

Date Name; c^^ristine santamei io

Title: Associate commissioner

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

~OocuSion«<l by:

7/22/2021 AWtit PlmIiia.
—.AS33172B74E140C...

Date Name: Maria Devlin

Title: President & ceo

FIT/NHNH, Inc. Amendment #2

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A02 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

—DocuSlcMd by;

7/29/2021

■02744912E0904E9.

Date Name: Takhmina Rakhmatova
Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

FIT/NHNH, Inc. Amendment #2

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A02 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit B-3, Amendment 12 Budget Sheet

FIT/NHNH; Dover Permartent Housing

|CoC Funds - NH0053UT002010

1 SFY22 - 11/1/21-6/30/22
.

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
operating S  50.032 S s $ • $ S  50.032 S ■ S
Supportiw Services t  14.176 $ s  - i • S $  14.176 i ■

Administrabon »  1.837 s t s S ■ $ S  1.637 S ■■ $
25% Required Match s  ie.i2t s $ $  10.121 s % - j

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE S  93.066 s  . - $  19,121 s ■ t S  74.645 t. ■

SFY23 • 7/1/22-10/31/22
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Operating i  29.516 i  ■ S, $ - S S  29,516 $ - $  .

Supportiw SecMces S  7.068 i s $ - S $ . 7.068 S •
Administration S  818 s s s - 5 S  816 s •
25% Required Match S  0.560 i S  9.560 S s •
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALAHCE S  46,982 i S  9,560 S - s $  .37.422 $ -

TOTAL 11/1/21-10/31/22 -
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD 'MONTHLY
Operating S  68.548 $  • $ $ - S  " • 5  88,548 $ j

Supportive Services S  21.264 S S - $ S  21,264 s •
Administration S  2.455 s $  , $■. $  2.455 t -
25% Required Match S  28.661 S S  28.681 s  .. .. $  - s .

S  140.948 i  . . .- S  29.681 $ -• s  . y  112.267 s - s  -.

Total W/0 Match $ 112^67

Exhibit B-3. Amendment 02 Budget Sheet
FIT/NHNH, Inc. Dover Permanent Housing
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-n-A02

Contractor Inlbab

Page 1 of 1 7/22/2021
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FIT/NHNH, INC is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 13, 1994.1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 207982

Certificate Number 0005352884

tOm

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 20th day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Scott Ellison ^ , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 aim a duly elected Officer of FITNHNH. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vole taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duty called and
held on July 22 2021 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Maria Devlin. President/CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of FIT/NHNH. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Cprpofation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3.) hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation In oontracts with thv'SEte^New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. '

Dated: Julv 22.2Q21

)ure of Elected Officer
Name; Scott Ellison

Title: Board of Director, Chair

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD*
FAMllNT-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DBEAUDQIN

DATE (NM/DD/yVYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, ANDTHE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; if tho cortiflcato holder la an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(tOB) must have ADDltlONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to tho terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rlnhts to the certlflcBte holder In lieu of such ondorsementlst

PRODUCER

Davis & Towie Morrill & Everett Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

{aJono.Cxtv 1603) 226-6S11 mo1:(603) 225-7936

INSIIRPRISI AFFOnniNO rOVFRAOF NAIO

INSURER A :PhlladetDhIa Insurance Comnanv 23860

IMSUREO

Families in Transition, inc.
122 Market St

Manchester, NH 03101

INSURFR n r Onnlti Stita HoaKh Cirt S Huxntn $*ivlc«t Siir bwirtd Group

INSURER C :

INSURER O :

INSURFJ1R ;

INSURER P :

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONOITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSR

LIB TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADOL
INFO

8UBR
wvn POUCY NUMDER

POLICY EPF
(Humruvvwr

POUCY EXP
(MH/nnnrvYYi LIMITS

A COMMERCIAL GENERAL UAUIUTY

1 CLAIMS-MAOB OCCUR PHPK2221002 1/1/2021 1/1/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE 1  1,000,000
DAMAGE TOREKn-ED ,  1,000,000

,  20,000

PERSONAL & ADV IN.n IRV ,  1,000,000

/L AGGREGATE UMIT AfWES PER;

policy [XI ̂9r X) LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AOOREGATF. ,  3,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMPATP AGO ,  3,000,000

A ALT0M08ILEUADIUTY

PHPK2221005 1/1/2021 1/1/2022

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT s  1,000,000
X ANY AUTO

Sutm'only
Monly

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

8001LY INJURY IPer oarsonl s

eODILY INJURY fPer anrtrin/Ml 1

s

s

A X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAJ US-MADE PHUB751268 '1/1/2021 1/1/2022
EACH OCCURRENCE ^  6,000,000

AGGREGATE

DEO 1 X 1 RETENTIONS 10,000 j  5,000,000
B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'LIABIUTY

ANY PHOPRieTORff-ARTNER/EXecunVE [Tn

LN-I
Ifiwa, doatflx und«r
OESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS Wow

N/A

HCHS20200000404 2/1/2021 2/1/2022

PER OTH-
RTATIITF FR

e.L EACH ACCIDENT ,  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPI nVFF,  1,000,000

E.L. 01SEA.se . POUCY LlMrT ,  1,000,000
A

A

Professlonal Llablll

Professional Llablll

PHPK2221002

PHPK2221002

1/1/2021

1/1/2021

1/1/2022

1/1/2022

Each Occurrence

Aggregate

1,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101. AddltJonti Ramvh* SchMuio, miv Pa aUaehod 11 mora apaea la rvauirMt)
$1,000,000 Excess Employers Liability Coverage Is provided under Policy# EWC009477 by Midwest Employers Casualty Corp.-policy term 2/1/2020 -2/2/2021.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NHDHHS

129 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIDED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AI/THORIZED RCPRESENTAT1VG

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Families

Our Mission

The mission of Families in Transition is to prevent and
break the cycle of homelessness.
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l^BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FIT/NHNH, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2020 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2020, and the
changes in their consolidated net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massochusetts ■ Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2019 consolidated financial statements and, in our
report dated March 31, 2020, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2019 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the consolidating
statement of financial position as of December 31, 2020, and the related consolidating statements of
activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the individual
entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 29. 2021
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties
Investments

Investment in related entity
Properly and equipment, net
Development in process
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable.
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamortlzed deferred costs

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions - controlling interest
Without donor restrictions - noncontrolling interest

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2020 2019

E  3,536,208 $ 2,522,454
67,946 67,501

1,691,498 589,218

87,753 65,512
60.946 59.367

5.444.351 3.304.052

512,271 428,390
847.300 1,012,597

1,235,007 1,123,413
1,000 1,000

34,425,916 32,788,053
218,835 •  155,686
80.638 80.638

;  42.765.318 $ 38.893.829

1  345,909 $ 317,739
889,234 167,557
264,583 372,038
134.693 59.671

1,634,419 917,005

15.223.778 15.610.670

16.858.197 16.527.675

22,831,326 19,284,224
2.344.795 2.602.333

25,176,121 21,886,557

731.000 479.597

25.907.121 22.366.154

42.765.318 S 38.893.829

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019)

Revenue end support
Federal, state and other grant support
CARES Act Granb
Rental income, net of vacancies

Thrift store sales

Public support
Tax credit revenue

Special events
Developer fees
VISTA program revenue
Unrealized gain on investments
(Loss) gain on disposal of assets
Interest income

lr>-kind donations

Investment income

Forgiveness of debt
Medicaid reimbursements

Other income

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

Expenses
Program activities

Housing
Thrift store

Total program acthrilies
Fundraising
Management and general

Total expenses

Excess of revenue and support over expenses

Capital contributions

Partnership distributions

Change in net assets

Change in net assets attributable to noncontrdling interest in
subsidiaries

Change in net assets after redassification of portion
attributable to noncontrofling interest in
sut>sidiaries

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

V\4thout Donor Restrictions Without Donor Restrictions Total Wthout Donor VWth Donor Total Total

- Controllino Interest - Noncontmllinn Interest Restrictions Restrictions 2020 2019

S  4.317.329 S S  4.317.329 S  615,231 S 4,932,560 5 4.629.513
4.183.652 - 4,183.652 - 4,183,652 .

2.492.880 - 2.492.880 - 2,492,880 2.346.802
410.942 - 410.942 . 410,942 573,355

2.952.466
- 2,952.466 . 2,952,456 2.050.951

- - • . . 268.238
420.547 - 420.547 . 420,547 518,237
121,670 - 121.670 121,670 101,545

-
- - . . 75.368

103,827
- 103.827 . 103,827 252,431

(1.362) - (1.362) - (1.362) 210,190
14.838 - 14.838 . 14,838 19,326
9.244 - 9.244 . 9.244 105.484
8.207 - 8.207 - . 8,207 21.969

131.267 . 131.267 . 131.267 131,267
488.990 - 488.990 . 488,990 674.861
201.865 201,865 . 201,865 226,640
363.828 - 363,828 (363.828) . .

16.220.190 . 16.220.190 251 403 16.471.593 12.206.177

10,277,005 10.277.005 10,277,005 9,524.438
415817 . 415.817 . 415.817 417.963

10,692.622 - 10.692.822 . 10,692.822 9.942,401
1.074.295 - 1.074.295 - 1,074,295 1.000,388
1.186 537 - 1.186.537 - 1.186.537 1.078.712

12 953 654 . 12 953 654 .

12.953.654 12.021.501

3.266.536 - 3.266.536 251.403 3,517,939 184.676

24.438 . 24.438 . 24,438 12.928
(543) (867) (1 410) . (1.410) (7.317)

3.290.431 (867) 3.289.564 251,403 3,540.967 190,287

256 671 (256.671) . _ . .

3.547.102

19.284.224

(257.538)

2,602.333

3.289.584

2_V886.557

22,83V326 S 2.344.795 $ 25.176,121 $

251.403

479.597

731.000 %

3,540,967

22.366.154

25.907.121 $

190.287

22.175.867

22.366.154

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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OocuStgn Envelope ID; 23A4B1CB-E58E-47ED-9804-296279C6DE5E

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019)

Program Activities

Management 2020
Housing Thrift Store Fundraisino and General Total

Salaries and benefits

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Total salaries and
benefits

Other expenses

4,739,044

506.292
329,916

5,575,252

268,372
21,134
20.663

310,169

465,765
49,673
33.444

548,882

683,020

73,234

49,060

6,156,201
650,333
433.083

2019

Total

$ 5,295,139

546,228
393.960

• 805,314 7,239,617 6,235,327

Advertising 9,001 19,278 2,335 5,749 36,363 • 56,494
Application and permit fees - - . • 4,915
Bad debts 63,594 - - 63,594 13,402
Bank charges 8,125 6,059 881 7,027 22,092 21,874
Condominium association fees 15,515 - . 15,515 12,072
Consultants 109,301 2,900 13,736 18,272 144,209 49,374
COVID expenses 336,834 1,840 36,824 52,646 428,144
Depreciation 1,116,863 10.101 166,761 88,507 1,382,232 1,239,330
Events 9,709 741 63,921 . 74,371 147,755
Food 156,813 - - . 156,813 124,060
General insurance 150,186 1,924 16,826 11,565 180,501 175.444
Interest expense 189,205 '  494 36,525 12,175 238,399 221,658
Management fees - - . 6,724
Meals and entertainment 1,663 138 192 285 2,278 4,747
Membership dues 10,449 •  - 1,289 1,933 13,671 8,621
Merger expenses - - . . _ 146,686
Office supplies 64,808 8,490 6,841 10,075 90,214 131,166
Operational expenses • other 156,304 - . . 156,304 107,422
Participant expenses 72,037 . - . 72,037 139,602
Postage 7,219 8 912 1,352 9,491 16,240
Printing 18,189 3,112 2.198 3,216 26,715 47,361
Professional fees 128,112 4,000 8,677 42,254 183,043 212,640
Rental subsidies 301,110 - - . 301,110 332,635
Repairs and maintenance 422,528 17,050 56,979 31,988 528,545 721,321
Staff development 24,383 50 2,959 4,424 31,816 45,882
Taxes 337,333 3,000 . . 340,333 367,212
Technology support 147,700 1,376 "17,247 25,620 191,943 221,898
Telephone 122,090 1,320 10,143 15,114 148,667 137,136
Travel 21,145 272 2,767 4,134 28,318 51,658
Utilities 508,965 17,984 64,754 26,209 617,912 643,659
VISTA program 66,785 - 12,646 . 79,431 208,887
Workers' compensation 125.787 5.511 - 18.678 149.976 168.299

Total expenses $10.277.005 $ 415.817 $ 1.074.295 $_ 1.186.537 $12,953,654 $12.021.501

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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OocuSIgn Envelope ID: 23A4B1CB-E58E-47ED-9804-296279C6DE5E

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019)

». 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 3,540,967 $ 190,287
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by

operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 1,395,576 1.253,461
Forgiveness of debt (131,267) (131,267)
Unrealized gain on investments (103,827) (252,431)
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets 1,362 (210,190)
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable (445) (15,290)
Grants and contributions receivable (1,102,280) 197,125
Prepaid expenses (22,241) 14,495
Other current assets (1.579) 106,578

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (46,887) (82,350)
Accrued expenses (107,455) 23,943
Due to related party - (35,613)
Other current liabilities 75.022 (22.8041

Net cash provided by operating activities 3.496.946 1.035.944

Cash flows from investing activities
Repayments from related parties . 35,613
(Purchases) proceeds from sale of investments (7.767) 465,602
Investment in development in process (63,149) (523,132)
Proceeds from disposal of assets - 846,634
Acquisition of property and equipment (2.227.4811 (1.730.3331

Net'cash used by investing activities (2.298.3971 ■  (905.6161

Cash flows from financing activities
Net repayments on line of credit • (145,000)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2,452 2,127,975
Payment of financing costs - (31,409)
Payments on long-term debt (268.6631 (771.2181

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (266.2111 1.180.348

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 932,338 1,310,676

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year 3.963.441 2.652.765

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year $ 4.895.779 $ 3.963.441

Composition of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,536,208 $ 2,522,454
Replacement reserves 512,271 428,390
Reserve cash designated for properties 847.300 1.012.597

S 4.895.779 S 3.963.441

Supplemental disclosures: :

Acquisition of property and equipment through accounts payable $ 768.564 $
-

Acquisition of property and equipment through long-term borrowings from seller $ 25.412 £

Property and equipment transferred from development in process $ -  $ 3.972.896

Interest paid $ 238.399 S 221.658

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 23A4B1CB-E58E-47ED-9804-296279C6DE5E

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

Organization

FIT/NHNH, an incorporated New Hampshire nonprofit, provides hunger relief, emergency shelter, safe
affordable housing and support services to individuals and families who are homeless or in need in the
State of New Hampshire. The programs and services offered provide positive outcomes through the
incorporation of evidence based models and practices to meet identified needs and goals of those they
serve and provide an integrated system of care to prevent homelessness when possible and rapidly
rehouse those who become homeless, including both the chronically homeless and families with
children.

The Organization directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street,
Spruce Street. Lake Avenue and Douglas Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing
facilities are owned and operated by two limited partnerships of which the Organization, or one of its
subsidiaries, is the sole general partner. These limited partnerships include Family Bridge Limited
Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street in Manchester, New Hampshire: and Family
Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on South Beech Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire (collectively referred to as the Limited Partnerships).

The Organization also owns and operates emergency shelters for homeless individuals in facilities
located on Manchester Street and Union Street in Manchester, NH. In 2020, FIT/NHNH purchased an
additional property on Lake Ave in Manchester, New Hampshire where it will operate its food pantry
formerly located at the Manchester Street, Manchester, New Hampshire facility.

Housing Benefits, a Community Development Housing Organization was created to identify and
develop new housing units and refurbish existing units to meet the persistent need of combating
homelessness. Completed housing units are located on Concord Street, School & Third Street, Lowell
Street, Belmont Street, Market Street, Spruce Street and Hayward Street, in Manchester, New
Hampshire as well as additional housing facilities located on Central Avenue in Dover, New Hampshire
(Dover), and at Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire and an emergency shelter location in
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire.

On April 12, 2019, HB-AH, LLC (HB-AH) was legally formed as a limited liability company organized
under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, which is treated as a disregarded entity for federal
income tax purposes. HB-AH's purpose is to acquire, own, rent, operate and manage 23 residential
apartments located in Manchester, New Hampshire. HB-AH is to operate exclusively to further the
charitable purpose of Housing Benefits, HB-AH's sole member.

The Organization is the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEH), a New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families in the Manchester,
New Hampshire area. MEH is the only family shelter in Manchester, New Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 100% of Family Outfitters, LLC (OutFITters), a limited liability corporation.
OutFITters operates an independent thrift store in Manchester, New Hampshire with the sole purpose
of generating an alternate funding stream for the Organization.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 23A4B1CB-E58E-47ED-9804-296279C6DE5E

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

The Organization is the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End Homelessness
(NHCEH), a statewide entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for homelessness through
research, education and advocacy."

Wilson Street Condominium Association (the Association) was established for the purpose of
maintaining and preserving a five unit property located on Wilson Street In Manchester, New
Hampshire. The Organization is the majority owner of the Association.

The Organization has several wholly-owned corporations which include Second Street Family Mill, Inc.
(Family Mill), and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General
Partners), all of which are New Hampshire corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent
the .01% sole general partners in the Limited Partnerships, whereby Family Mill is a general partner of
Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree is a general partner of Family Willows.

In 2021, it is anticipated that FIT/NHNH will begin the redevelopment of its Union St property. The
project, known as Angie's Housing Program, will create 11 units of permanent, supportive housing for
those experiencing homelessness.

1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

Since the General Partners have control of the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 810-20-25,
Consolidation, the financial statements of the Limited Partnerships are required to be consolidated
with the Organization's consolidated financial statements. The limited partners' ownership interest
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position as noncontrolling interest.

The consolidated financial statements include the net assets of the Organization, the Limited
Partnerships, Housing Benefits, HB-AH, MEH, OutFITters, NHCEH, the Association, and the
General Partners. All significant inter-entity balances and transactions are eliminated in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 23A4B1CB-E58E-47ED-9804-296279C6DE5E

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset classification. Such information does not include sufficient
detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
December 31, 2019 consolidated financial statements, from which the summarized information

was derived.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements.
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared In accordance with
U.S. GAAP, which require the Organization to report information regarding to its consolidated
financial position and activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor restricted
contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction
expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without
donor restrictions in the consolidated statement of activities.

All contributions are considered to be available for general use unless specifically restricted by the
donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as support with donor restrictions that increases net assets with
donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as support without donor restrictions in the year of
the gift.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 23A4B1CB-E58E-47ED-9804-296279C6DE5E

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

The Organization reports contributions of buildings or equipment as support without donor
restrictions, unless a donor places explicit restriction pn Its use. Contributions of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor
restrictions and reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions when the assets are acquired
and placed in service.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The. Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which,
at times, may exceed the federally insured limits. Management regularly monitors the financial
institutions, together with their respective cash balances, and attempts to maintain the potential risk
at a minimum. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Reserves are those deposits of cash and cash equivalents not generally available for operating
costs, but restricted to particular uses including operating and replacement reserves for rental
properties as well as certain other social services and programs.

Prooertv and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation, less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. Assets not in service are not depreciated. Following is
a summary of estimated useful lives by asset category:

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and improvements 3-40 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Equipment 3-10 years
Vehicles 5 years

Rental Income

Rental revenue Is recognized pro rata over each tenant's period of occupancy. A contract is
entered into with a tenant and covers a period of twelve months. All rents are collected at the
beginning of each month and are nonrefundable. A tenant has an option to cancel a lease at any
time with a minimum of 30 days notice, at which time the Organization will prorate the final rent
payment through a tenant's expected move-out date.
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OocuSign Envelope ID: 23A4B1CB-E58E-47ED-9804-296279C6DE5E ,

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

When a contract is entered into with a tenant, the Organization collects a security deposit. The
security deposits are maintained in separate cash accounts and a corresponding liability is
recognized. Upon termination of a tenant's contract, the Organization assesses the condition of the
unit being vacated. If it is determined a unit is vacated in a condition equivalent to when the tenant
occupied the unit, the security deposit is refunded to the tenant. If a unit is determined to be
vacated in a condition less than equivalent to when the tenant occupied the unit, the security
deposit is retained and recognized as revenue.

)

Volunteer Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these services has not been included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended December 31. 2020 and 2019 was
approximately $414,047 and $1,030,000, respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses allocated include salaries and
benefits, depreciation and amortization, office and other expenses, which are allocated based on
direct payroll hours by functional cost centers.

Change in Net Assets from Operations

The consolidated statements of activities include a measure of change in net assets from
operations. Changes in net assets which are excluded from change in net assets from operations
include capital contributions and partner distributions which are considered non-operating.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a tax-exempt Section J70(b){1)(A)(vi) public charity as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes require the Organization to report any
uncertain tax positions and to adjust its financial statements for the impact thereof. As of December
31. 2020 and 2019, the Organization determined that it had no tax positions that did not meet the
more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable tax authority. The Organization
files an informational return in the United States. This return is generally subject to examination by
the federal government for up to three years.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 23A4B1CB-E58E-47ED-9804-296279C6DE5E

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

No provision for taxes on income is made in the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since,
as partnerships, all taxable income and losses are allocated to the partners for inclusion in their
respective tax returns.

The Association is not exempt from income taxes; however, the Code categorizes any profits
realized by the Association from its member activities as reductions of members' contributions
towards the operation of the condominium property and not as taxable income of the Association
or its members. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in these consolidated
financial statements.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAR, the Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 29, 2021,
which was the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated
financial statements.

2. Availabilitv and Liauiditv of Financial Assets

As of December 31, 2020, the Organization has working capital, excluding current assets with
donor restrictions, of $3,095,757 and average days (based on normal expenditures) cash and cash
equivalents on hand of 90.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on long-term debt, and capital acquisitions not
funded through replacement reserves or financed with debt, were as follows:

2020 2019

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,536,208 $ 2,522,454
Accounts receivable 67,946 67,501
Grants and contributions receivable 1,691,498 589,218
Investments 1.235.007 1.123!413

Total financial assets 6,530,659 4,302,586

Donor-imposed restrictions:
Restricted funds (731.0001 (479.5971

Financial assets available at year end for
current use $ 5.799.659 $ 3.822.989

The Organization also has a line of credit available to meet short-term needs, as described in Note
5.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 23A4B1CB-E58E-47ED-9804-296279C6DE5E

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

The Organization has replacement reserves and cash reserves designated for properties as part of
its debt financing with New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA) which are only
available when approved by NHHFA. As a result, these replacement reserves and cash reserves
designated for properties are not considered available for general expenditure within the next year
and are not reflected in the amount above. The goal for the Organization is to maintain a balanced
budget while meeting the requirements of the various financing authorities.

3. Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2020 2019

Land $  3,764,378 $ 3,764,378
Land improvements 650,360 650,360
Buildings and improvements 41,941.856 39,119,498
Furniture and fixtures 1,055,379 920,936
Equipment 639,373 604,425
Vehicles 386,565 361,153
Construction in progress

- 850

48,437,911 45,421,600
Less: accumulated depreciation 14.011.995 12.633.547

Property and equipment, net $  34.425.916 % 32.788.053

At December 31. 2020 and 2019, the Organization held $37,334,275 and $37,087,574,
respectively, of land, land improvements, and buildings and improvements for the purpose of
leasing to individuals. Accumulated depreciation on the land improvements, buildings and
improvements at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $10,319,415 and $9,284,428, respectively.

\

4. Development In Process

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, development in process consisted of various projects in process
related to all of the properties owned by the Organization.

5. Line of Credit

The Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement, renewed annually, with a financial
institution in the amount of $550,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest rate on any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution,
with a floor of 4%. There were no outstanding balance as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

-13-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 23A4B1CB-E58E-47ED-9804-296279C6DE5E

FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

6. LonO'Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

2020 2019

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA in monthly payments of $680,
including interest at 1% and an escrow of $289. The loan is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in
full in January 2033. $ 46,492 $ 50,142

A note payable to NHHFA. The note is noninterest bearing and is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or in June 2042. 183,283 163,283

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank in monthly payments,
of $883, including interest at 5% for five years. After five years,
the interest rate adjusts to match the then current Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston 5-year, 20-year amortizing rate
plus 2.50%. The loan is collateralized by real estate on Spruce
Street, Manchester, New Hampshire and is due and payable in
full in May 2034. 103,048 104,019

A mortgage loan payable to TO Bank, N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,123, including interest at 4.1%. The loan is collateralized by
real estate at Beech Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
loan is due and payable in full in November 2023. 36,401 48,028

A mortgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank in monthly
payments of $2,126, including interest at 7.18%. The loan is
collateralized by real estate on Douglas Street, Manchester,
New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in full in April
2024. 196.746 207,307

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property. Monthly payments of
$1,095 include interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and interest are fully paid with the final installment due and
payable on May 1,2034. 128,086 135,156
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
coliateraiized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 50% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable on May 28, 2034. This note is
nonrecourse. 84,456 85,018

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA.
coliateraiized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable on May 28, 2033. This note is
nonrecourse and is subordinate to the $84,456 note payable. 336,674 336,955

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to
Merrimack County, coliateraiized by Bicentennial property and
various financing instruments. The note is due and payable in
full in May 2033. 260,000 260,000

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
coliateraiized by Millyard II property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable upon sale or refinancing of the
property or in May 2031. This note'is nonrecourse. 445,068 445,068

/  A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
coliateraiized by Millyard II property. Monthly payments of
$1,729 include principal and interest at 3.5% per annum. The
final installment is due and payable on September 1, 2032. 193,172 207,057

A note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New '
Hampshire, coliateraiized by Millyard II property and various
financing instruments. A payment of interest shall be made
annually no later than August 1 each year based on 42.5% of
the net cash flow, as defined. In any year where the Debt
Coverage Ratio, as defined, exceeds 1.15 to 1, principal
payments shall be made no later than August 1 in an amount
that will result In a 1.15 to 1 Debt Coverage Ratio. All unpaid
amounts are due and payable in full on August 1, 2031. This
note is nonrecourse. 226,725 226,725

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to the New
Hampshire Community Loan Fund, Inc. (NHCLF), coliateraiized
by Millyard II property. Payment of principal is due and payable
on December 31, 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 250,000 250,000
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020
{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by Millyard Families I real estate. The note is noninterest
bearing and is due and payable in January 2027. 230,000 230,000

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to CDFA,
collateralized by Millyard Families I real estate. Monthly
payments of $1,121 include principal and interest at 2% per
annum. The final installment is due and payable on June 15,
2022. 19,860 32,773

A mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30,2034. 850,000 850,000

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TD Bank, N.A.,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,019
include principal and interest at 4.33%. The note is payable in
full in November 27, 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT/NHNH, Inc.
and Family Mill. 396,436 415,323

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash flow payable by
October 1. The outstanding principal is due by October 1, 2034.
The note is collateralized by real estate and is nonrecourse. 600,000 600,000

A mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on July 9,
2037. 505,816 516,277

A note payable by Family Willows to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October 1. All outstanding
principal is due by October 2029. The note is collateralized by
real estate and is nonrecourse. 72,726 81,817
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December 31, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

A note payable by Family Willows to RBS Citizens Bank,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $1,922
include principal and interest at 3.25%, based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note is payable in full on June 27, 2033 and
is guaranteed by FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Big Shady Tree. 235,835 251,100

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. Monthly payments of $2,683 include principal and
interest af 8% per annum. The note is due in February 2021. 9,544 40,664

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHCLF,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. The note bears no interest and monthly payments of
$2,775 will commence on April 15, 2021 and continue until
maturity in October 2039. 617,613 617,613

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Belmont Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full by December 2040. 413,575 413,575

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full in August 2040. 34,628 34,628

A second, noninterest bearing, mortgage note payable from
Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate. Annual payments
equal to the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$4,000 commenced in October 2012 and continue until the
maturity date in June 2041. 156,022 160,022

A noninterest bearing promissory note payable from Housing
Benefits to NHHFA collateralized by a mortgage and security
agreement on Lowell Street real estate. The note is to be
forgiven 1/15th annually over the low-income housing tax credit
compliance period which ends in 2026, subject to compliance
with certain requirements. During 2020 and 2019, $131,267
was recognized as revenue and support in the consolidated
statements of activities. 721,963 853,230
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December 31, 2020
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A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Dover real estate and personal property. The
noninterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2028. 216,148 216,148

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 393-395 Spruce Street. Annual
payments of the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$5,000 are due annually by October 1. The note is due in full by
October 1,2045. 567,808 .572,808

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property
located at 161 South Beech Street, Unit 2. Monthly payments of
$2,137 include principal and interest at 4.35%. The note is due
in full by April 2024. 372,849 386,216

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $488, including
interest at 4.06%. The loan was paid in full in 2020. - 4,237

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $760, including
interest at 5.374%. The loan was paid in full in 2020. - 5,989

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $472, including
interest at 4.25%. The loan is due in March 2025 and is

collateralized by the related vehicle. 20,560

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $308, including
interest at 4.75%. The loan is due in October 2023 and is

collateralized by the related vehicle. . 9,791 12,930

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA, collateralized by the real
estate at Lake Avenue, Manchester, New Hampshire. The non-
interest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2045. 750,000 750,000

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 641 Hayward Street, Manchester, New
Hampshire. Monthly payments of $991 include principal and
interest at 3.015%. The note is due in full by October 2025. 174,276 177,428
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A mortgage note payable to Peoples United Bank, collateralized by
Hope House. Monthly payments of $2,283 include principal and
interest at 4.94%. The note is due in full by January 2027. 364,674 373,411

A construction loan payable to Franklin Savings Bank,
collateralized by real estate located. at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. Housing Benefits has the ability
to draw up to $825,000 on the promissory note. Monthly
payments including principal, interest and escrow of $6,854 are
due over a 30 year period starting September 2018 at 4.90%
interest. 707,538 724,146

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of
$720,000. Annual payments are due in amounts equal to 25%
of surplus cash. The loan is due in full by November 1, 2047. 720,000 720,000

Three vehicle loans collateralized by an activity bus payable to
Ford Credit in monthly payments of $392 at 5.9% annual
interest rate. The loans are due and payable in March 2022. 15,937 28,771

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street, 2nd Floor. The note
has a borrowing limit of $1,655,323. As costs are incurred.
Housing Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of Manchester.
Annual payments of the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as
defined, or $5,000 are due by October 1 commencing October
1. 2019. The note is due in full by October 1, 2047. 1,453,182 1,458,182

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester, collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson
Street, 3rd Floor. The note, is funded by the City of
Manchester's Community Improvenient Program and the City of
Manchester's Affordable Housing Trust Funds. The note has a
borrowing limit of $531,252. As costs are incurred. Housing
Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual
payments in the amount of 25% of net cash flow, as defined,
are due by October 1 commencing October 1, 2019. The note
is due in full by December 1, 2047. 531,252 531,252
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A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,

collateralized by real estate located in Wolfeboro, New
Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $780,000. Annual
payments in amounts equal to 25% of surplus cash. The loan is
due in full by December 1, 2047.

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA and is collateralized by the
real estate and personal property of HB-AH, LLC on Concord
Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. The mortgage is
insured by the U.S Department of Housing and Urban
Development through the Housing Finance Agency Risk
Sharing Program authorized by Section 542(c) of the Housing
and Community Development Act of 1992. Monthly payments
of $6,745 are due for principal and interest at 4.20%. All
remaining principal is due on May 1, 2059.

A technical assistance note payable to NHHFA to provide support
to the Organization for renovations at the Union Street Shelter
in Manchester. New Hampshire. If the renovation project is
approved, NHHFA is expected to be the lead lender on
renovations. If the renovation project is not approved NHHFA
will forgive the borrowings. The noninterest bearing note
payable is due at the time of closing on the construction loan.

A note payable to CDFA, collateralized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. Principal
only payments are due for the first 18 months, at which time
monthly payments include principal and interest at 2% will be
required until December 2021.

Less current portion
Less unamortized deferred costs

780,000 780,000

1,542,342 1,558,090

44,079 4.1,627

9.268 28.924

15,613,873 15,985,939

345,909
44.186

317,739
57.530

$ 15.223.778 $15.610.670

Surplus cash for the purposes of these disclosures is as defined in the respective loan
agreements.
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(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2019)

Principal maturities of long-term debt over the next five years and thereafter are as follows;

2021 $ 345.909
2022 229,001
2023 551,929

2024 666,228

2025 303,181

Thereafter , 13.517.625

S 15.613.873

Interest expense charged to operations, including amortization of deferred costs of $13,344, was
$238,399 and $221,658 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

7. Net Assets

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, net assets without donor restrictions are fully available to support
operations of the Organization.

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2020 2019

Investments to be maintained in perpetuity,
income is to support general operations

$ 25.000 S 25.000

Funds maintained with donor restrictions

temporary in nature:
The Family Place
Scholarships
Housing programs
Direct care for clients

Hope House '
NHNH merger

Substance use disorder services

NHNH programs

Passage of time

134,190
19,264
35,000

147,904
369,842

81,933
8,764

37,500
88,784
21,067
12,779

119.760
17,344

■  66.666

Total funds maintained with donor

restrictions temporary in nature
706.000 454.597

Total net assets with donor

restrictions $ 731.000 $ 479.597
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Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2020 2019

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Operating releases

The Family Place $ 9,280 $ 26,607
VISTA program - 48,116
Housing programs 55,000
Direct care for clients 103,321 71,083
Community Gardens - 2,000
Hope House 21,566 107,175
NHNH merger 76,944 122,810
Substance use disorder services 97,717 374,438
NHNH programs ^ . 107

Capital project releases
Family Willows Recovery Housing

Program
NHNH programs

363.828 752.336

264,238
. 35,616

299.854

363.828 S 1.052.190

8. Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships" Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA, as a
condition of the allocation of low-income housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain in compliance with Code Section 42 for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.

9. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. All employees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at 100% up to 3% of compensation. The
Organization contributed $99,580 and $71,543 during the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively.
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10. Noncontrollinq Interest

Noncontrolling interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners in the Limited Partnerships as follows;

Limited Partner Prooertv 2020 2019

BCCC, Inc. Family Bridge 10 10
Boston Financial Corporate Family Bridge 607,620 766,943
BCCC. Inc. , Family Willows 10 10
Boston Financial Midway Family Willows 1.737.255 1.835.370

$  2.344.795 $ 2.602_^333

11. Uncertainty

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
a global pandemic. Local, U.S., and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the
spread of the global pandemic, COVID-19, by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in
many sectors and imposing limitations on travel and the size and duration of group meetings. Many
sectors are experiencing disruption to business operations. There is unprecedented uncertainty
surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and the scale of
government actions to mitigate them. To date, the U.S. government has passed legislation which
allows for increased funding to states to assist in paying for costs associated with COVID-19.
Therefore, while management expects this matter to impact operating results, the related financial
impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated.

On April 8, 2020, the Organization received a loan from the U.S. Small Business Agency (SBA)
within the CARES Act under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) in the amount of $1,188,400.
The loan had a two-year term with a maturity date of April 2022, bearing an annual interest rate of
1%, and was to be payable monthly with the first six monthly payments deferred. The principal
amount of the PPP was subject to forgiveness, upon the Organization's request, to the extent that
the proceeds are used to pay qualifying expenditures, including payroll costs, interest on
mortgages, rent and utilities, incurred by the Organization. The Organization received notification
from the lender of the loan that the amount had been forgiven in full in November 2020. The full
amount of the PPP received and forgiven is included in the federal, state and other grant support in
the consolidated statement of activities for the year ended December 31. 2020.

In August 2020, the Organization was awarded a grant in the amount of $2,832,815 from the State
of New Hampshire's Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR). The
GOFERR grant is a pass-through grant provided to the State of New Hampshire through the
CARES Act. The GOFERR grant will be used by the Organization to cover eligible costs outlined in
the grant agreement that are incurred through December 30, 2020. At December 31, 2020, the
Organization had received the entire grant amount and the full amounts of the awards have been
recognized as revenue in the consolidated statement of activities as conditions of the funding have
been met.
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In March 2020, the Organization was award a grant under the McKlnney Emergency Shelter Grant
Program (ESG) through the City of Manchester. The funds were provided to decompress the
shelters as a result of the pandemic. The grant, was paid on a reimbursement basis as qualifying
expenses were incurred. Through December 31, 2020. the Organization had incurred $162,437 of
qualifying expenses. The funds have been recognized as revenue in the consolidated statement of
activities and were in accounts receivable at December 31, 2020.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2020

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties

Other current assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties
Related party notes receivable
Accrued interest receivable on related party

notes

Investments

Investment in related entities

Property and equipment, net

Development in process

Other assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Due to related parties

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt net of cunent portion and

unamortized deferred costs

Total liabilities

Net assets

Net assets without donor restrictions -

controlling interest

Net assets without donor restrictions -

noncontrolling interest

Total net assets vwthout donor

restriction

Net assets with donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

Families In

Transition -

Ooeratino

1  1.795.698

207,973
607,168

24,656
1,567,121

4.900

4.207.516

78.891

66.865
1,725.799

1.248.852

1.181.187
1.196.347

3.517.593

207.489

Limited

Partnerships

I  45,009

12,652

15,093

24,493
17.374

114.621

121.247
249.054

7.312.634

Housing
Benefits

183,157

36,815

18,726
156,513

38.672

433.883

279.047

531.381

25,051

19.395,631

50.000

ASSETS

New Horizons Manchester

Family for New Emergency
Outfitters Hampshire Housing

13.373 S

93.673

107.046

21,871

596.078

2,700

1.076,440

26,296

695,490

2,397.004

28.820

4.154.610
11.346

30,638

$ 13.430,539 $ 7.797.556 $ 20.714,993 $ 128.917 S 6.622.418 $

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

105,483 S
109.327,

136.831
843.472

5.058

1.200.171

1.633.073

2,833,244

10.597,295

10,597,295

10.597,295

55,392 $
74.618

781.758

118.419

21,900

1,052.087

3.637.088

4.689.175

763,586

2.344.795

3,108.381

3.108.381

170.958
41.931

524.710
1,386.125

40.530

2.164.254

11.663.664

13,827.918

803

10.779

15.411

14.076
830.449

49.530
6.590

66.450

26.993 967.095

15.752

6,887.075

6.887.075

6,887.075

26,993 982.847

101.924

101.924

101,924

5.639.571

5.639.571

5,639.571

618

7.890
394

8.902

1,380

10.282

1.861
9.827

170,006

181,694

181,694

New

Hampshire
Coalition to Vifilson Street

End Condominium

Homelessness Association

(171.412)

(171,412)

(171.4121

174.880 S

2,807

177,687

1.485

2.256

755

3,011

3.011

176,161

176.161

179.172 $

23,983

33.086

20.712

77,781

20.183

74

20.257

20.257

57,524

57.524

V^th Donor

Restriction

21,395 $ 706,000 $

2,588

706.000

25.000

731,000

Eliminations

(192,194)

(2.540,097)

(2.732.291)

(1,725.799)

(1.248.852)

(1.220.398)

(192.194)
(1,248.852)
(2,540.097)

(3.981.143)

(1.725.799)

(5.706.942)

Total

3.536.208
67.946

1.691.498

87.753

60.946

5.444.351

512.271
847.300

1.235.007

1,000
34.425,916

218,835

80,638

345.909

889.234
264.583

134.693

1.634,419

15.223.778

16,858.197

(1,220.398) 22,831.326

■  2.344.795

(1.220.398) 25.176,121

-  731,000

176.161 57,524 731.000 (1.220.398) 25.907.121

$ 13.430.539 $ 7,797.556 S 20.714,993 $ 128.917 $ 6.622.418 $ 10.282 $ 179.172 $ 77.781 $ 731.000 S (6.927.340) $ 42.765 318
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Year Ended December 31, 2020

Revenue and support
Federal, state and other grant support
CARES Act Grants
Rental income, net of vacancies
Thrift store sales

Putillc support
Tax credit revenue

Special events
Property management fees
Developer fees
VISTA program revenue
Unrealized gain on investments
Loss on disposal of assets
Interest income

In-kind donations

Investment income

Forgiveness of debt
Medicaid reimbursements

Other income

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

Expenses
Program activities
Fundraising
Management and general

Total expenses

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
and support over expenses

Capital contributions

Partnership distributions

Change in net assets

Families In

Transition- Limited

Doerating Partnerships

$ 3,022,410

1,288.103

283.138

2.274.854

122,475

957,615
121.670

34.849

(1.362)

104,472
7,977

488.990

107.679

363.828

9.176.698

6.034.654

541.764

847.099

7.423.517

1.753.181

695.337

1,420

19,103

715.660

972.545

972.545

(256,685)

(1.4101

Housing
Benefrts

S  400.648

1.558.365

180,740

New

Hampshire
New Horizons Manchester Coalition to

Family for New Emergency End

4,761

131.267

96,157

2.371.938

2.511.090

306.134

130.678

2,947.902

(575,964)

Outfitters

410,942

100

12,478

423,520

478,862

478,862

Wilson Stree)
Condominium

Hampshire

i  1.271,795
2,895.549

23.900

394.024

298,072

68.978

Housino Homelessness Association Eliminations

1,267

8,207

6.116

4,967,908

2,135.458
226.397

273.056

2.634,911

(55,342) 2.332.997

224.215

2,466

119

32,150

258.950

279,417

192

279,609

Without

Donor

RestricUons

Total

(20,659)

102,629

3.530

106.159

17.151

17.151

89.008

77.476

77

16,802

24.438

(601.739) $ 4.317.329
4.183,652

(147,802)

(957.615)

(95.892)

(92,150)

94.355 (1.895.198) 16.220.190

94,355 (1,830,710)

;  (64.488)

10,692,822
1.074.295
1.186,537

94.355 (1.895.198) 12.953.654

3,266,536

24.438
(1.410)

VWth Donor

Restrictions

t  615.231 $

2.492,880

410.942

2.952.466

420.547

121,670

103.827

(1.362)
14.838

9.244

8.207
131,267

488,990
201.865

363.828 (363.828)

25T403

251.403

Total

4.932,560
4,183,652

2,492,880

410.942
2,952.466

420.547

121.670

103,827

(1.362)
14.838

9.244

8.207

131,267

488,990
201.865

16.471.593

10.692,822
1,074,295
1.186.537

12JS3,654

3.517,939

24,438

(1.410)

$  (258.095) $^^57|j9^ S (55.342) S 2.332.997 $ (20 659) $ 89.008 $ 24.438 S $ 3.289.564 $ 251.403 $ 3.540.967
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Program ActtvitJes

- New

New Hampshire
Families In Horizons for Manchester Coalition to Wilson Street Program Management
Transition - Limited Housing Famiy New Emergency End Condominium Activities and
Or>erafino Partnershios Benefits Outfitters Hamoshire Housing Homelessness Association Total Fundraisino General

laries and benefits

Salaries and wages S 2,558.139 $ S 665.157 $ 268,372 $ 1,317,006 $  198,742 $ $ $ 5,007,416 S  465,765 $  683,020
Employee benefits 295.997 • 88,493 21.134 103,349 18.453 . . 527,426 49,673 73,234
Payroll taxes 184 481 - 45.065 20.663 89 566 10.804 . . 350.579 33.444 49.060

Total salaries and 3,038,617 798.715 . 310,169 1,509,921 227.999 5,885,421 548,882 805.314
benefits

Advertising 6,290 . , 19.278 2,711 28,279 2,335 5,749
Bad debts 9.738 18.156 35,700 -

. . . 63,594
Bank charges 6,610 1.052 . 6.059 _ 301 162 14,184 881 7,027
Condominium association • - 74,029 - .. .

. .. 74,029
fees

Consultants 65,293 - 6.908 2,900 34,370 2,730 . . 112.201 13.736 18,272
COVID expenses 120.821 - 3.400 1,840 209,733 2,880 . _ 338.674 36.824 52,646
Oepreaation 164.519 297.577 581.779 10,101 71,229 204 1,019 536 1,126.964 166,761 88,507
Events

-
-

- 741 - . 9,709 . 10,450 63,921
Food - - 23,530 - 89,360 43.923 - . 156,813 .

General insurance 28,263 41,652 48,808 1,924 15,164 5.786 809 9,704 152,110 16,826 11.565
Interest expense 44,177 85,389 154,216 494 1,315 . _ . 285,591 36,525 12,175
Management fees 83,448 198,841 629,861 . . - . 25.465 937,615
Meals and entertainment 1,275 . 163 138 225 . _ . 1,801 192 285
Membership dues 9,666 • . . 283 - 500 _ 10,449 1,289 1,933
Office supplies 40,158 3.175 5,170 8,490 15,051 950 304 . 73,298 6.841 10,075
Operational expenses - 96,150 - . - 60,154 _ . _ 156,304
other

Participant expenses 53.310 243 1,242 . 15,242 . 2,000 72,037 . .

Postage 5.887 - 48 8 1,284. . . . 7.227 912 1,352
Printing 11.613 • - 3,112 6,576 . - . 21.301 2.198 3,216
Professional fees 54.528 26,028 29.414 4,000 14,242 700 . 3.200 132,112 8,677 42,254
Related entity expenses 1,437,332 (17,525) (617,856) 38,245 (94,889) (51.769) 351 . 693,889 _ .

Rent -
- - 24,800 . . . . 24,800 64,488

Rental subsidies 285,034 . -
. 16,076 . _ . 301,110 .

Repairs and maintenance 38,612 89,485 190,511 17.050 67,934 15.300 _ 40.686 459,578 56.979 31,988
Staff development 21,348 - - 50 1,140 - 400 1,495 _ 24,433 2.959 4.424
Taxes 34,277 74,680 228,226 3,000 - 75 75 . 340,333
Technology support 114,352 478 6,943 1,376 20,249 4,972 548 158 149,076 17.247 25.620
Telephone 69,989 719 37,466 1,320 8,216 4,064 . 1,636 123,410 10.143 15.114
Travel 19,745 - • 272 1,360 - 40 21,417 2,767 4,134
Utilities 29.427 152.595 254,661 17,984 44,946 14.528 . 12,808 526,949 64,754 26,209
VISTA program 66.785 -

-
- . - . . 66,785 12,646

Worlters' compensation 77.390 - 18.156 5,511 23.566 6.675 . _ 131.298 18.678

Total expenses S 6.034.654 S  972.545 $2.511.090 $ 478,862 S 2.135.458 $  279.417 S  17.151 S  94.355 $ 12,523,532 S 1.074.295 S 1.251.025

Eliminations

(58.514)

(95.892)
(937.615)

(693.889)

(89.288)

(20.000)

S 6,156.201
650,333

433.083

7.239,617

36.363

63.594

22.092

15.515

144.209

428.144

1,382.232
74.371

156.813

180.501
238,399

2,278

13,671
90.214

156.304

72.037

9.491

26.715

183.043

301,110

528.545

31.816
340.333
191.943

148.667

28.318

617.912

79,431

149,976

$ (1.895.1981 $ 12.953.654

-27-
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Families in Transition

Board of Directors

Board of Directors

Scott W. Ellison, Chair
COOK, LITTLE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, PLLC, Partner

Board member since 2018

Roy Tilslev« Vice Chair
Bernstein Shur, Shareholder

Board member since 2018

Robert Bartley, Treasurer

Bartley Financial Advisor, President, CPA, CFP

Board member since 2018

Frank Saglio, Co-Treasurer

WIPFLI, LLC, Sr. Manager Tax,

Board' member since 2018

Kristi Scarpone, Secretary

First, Corporate and Foundation Relations & Field Development Strategy
Board member since 2018

Dick Anagnost, At Large

Anagnost Companies, President

Board member since 2018

Heather Whitfield, At Large

People's United Bank, Sr. Vice President

Board member since 2018

David Cassldy, Past Co-Chair

Retired

Board member since 2018

Colleen Cone,

Comcast, Vice President, Human Resources

Board member since 2018

Alison Hutcheson

Merchants Fleet, Associate Director Legal
Board member since 2018

AnnMarie French

NH Fiscal Policy institute. Executive Director

Board member since 2018

Rev. 5/12/2021 RS
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Brian Hansen

Team Engineering, Project Manager

Board member since 2018

Brian Mikol

Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner

Board member since 2018

Jack Olson

Retired

Board member since 2018

Kitten Steams

Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage
Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aidrlch

Dartmouth Hitchcock, Sr. Advisor Community & Relations, External Affairs
Board member since 2018

RoyBaiientlne
Bailentine Partners, LLC, Executive Chairman,

Board member since 2019

Sarah Jacobs

AmeriCorps/Portfolio Managers
Board member since 2018

Sean Leighton

City of Manchester Police Department, Captain
Board member since 2019

Wayne McCormick, CFP

Steward Partners Managing Director Wealth Manager
Board member since 2018

Rev. Gayle Murphy

Minister At Large
Board member since 2020

Michael McCormlck

Reporting & Analytics Director/DBG Sales Operations
Board member since 2020

Michael SImoneau

Members First Credit Union, SVP, Community Outreach Officer
Board member since 2021

Chad Campbell

SilverTech Inc., Directorof Strategic Accounts
Board member since 2021

Rev. 5/12/2021 RS
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Danielle Pliska

First, Vice President, Finance

Board member since 2021

Robert Bonfigllo

Rise Wealth Management, Co-Founder of Rise Private Wealth Management
Board member since 2021

Melissa Szymanowski

Coca-Cola, Human Resources, Benefits, Risk & Safety, Leadership
Board member since 2021

Stephen Norton

Solution Health, Chief Strategy Officer

Board member since 2021

Rev. 5/12/2021 RS
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Maria Devlin

Profi le

Tenured professional with extensive experience leading teanns through building strategies and Initiatives to drive high performance
Adept at developing and carrying out a strategic vision, particularly those that require buy-In from Internal and external stakeholders
Expertise Includes fundralsing, change management, organlzatlbnal leadership, budget management and Improving team engagement

Ski l ls/Expertise

Experienced with Organizational
Budgeting Including Revenue &

Expense AccountablHty

Organizational Agility & Complexity
Management Teamwork and Team Building Skills

External Relationships & Partnerships
CustomerServlce Oriented

Face of the organization
Mission Focused

Coal Oriented, Leads by Example,
Visionary and Focused

Program/Project Management Experience

President & CEO

Eamllles In Transition - New Horizons, fVlanchester NH 06/2020 - present

The President serves as Chief Executive Officer of Families In Transition-New Horizons and will have overall strategic and operating
responsibility for staff, planning, dovolopment, management and successful Implementation of programs and services, community
engagement and execution of strategic objectives and mission of the organization.

•  Establishing a vision for community impact that is achieved through the efforts of a diverse team of high-performing leaders,
•  Responsible for overseeing the administration of programs to Include flnandal performance and viability, organization

mission and strategy, organizational operations, resource dovolopment and community impact.

Chief Executive Officer

American Red Cross of NH & VT, Concord, NH 03/2008-05/2020

Responsible for representing the American Red Cross In the community. Focus externally on core mission delivery, fundralsing
and being the face of the Red Cross for the media, donors and their communities. Responsibie for oversight and execution of a $5 million
operating budget

Created overall strategic planning and oversight for 3 major transitions In Northern New England. Oversight of execution of
staff and board Integration.
Lead orgnnUatlonal goals for service delivery, fundralsing and external relations - for the past 4 years have met or exceeded
key performance Indicators and revenue target of $1.2 - 2.5 million annually
Lead dual-state (NH/VT) operations with a team of 24 PTEs plus 1100 volunteers at multiple locations - in August 2019,
began merger with Red Cross of Maine to align staffing, processes, procedures for a new 3-state region
Build lasting community partnerships with local corporations & groups to ensure mission delivery such as - Installing over
12,000 freo smoliG alarms In homes across the two states in 5 years
Ensure that volunteers, youth and young adults are engaged and retained - 93% of our volunteer workforce Is engaged In
providing at least one hour of volunteer time to mission within the last fiscal year

Interim Executive Director

Director of Public Affairs

Children's Alliance of New Hampshire, Concord, NH 01/2007-03/2008

The Children's AJIIance (now New Futures Kids Count) advocates, educates and collaborates to Improve the health and wellness
of NH's residents. Collaborated with Board of Directors on organizational budget, development goals, policy Initiatives and
organizational values and mission. Responsible for all operations: HR, P&l, Board Development, public policy advocacy Initiatives
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M D e V nr I a

•  Organbod the Children's Advocacy Network - a diverse group of organizations and Individuals - dedicated to Improving the
•  life of children and families through legislative and public policy Initiatives, such as statewide kindergarten, statewide
children's health Insurance, greater access to Children In Need of Services (CHINS) and maintaining access to Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) benefits

•  Acting as the Interim Executive Director supported by 3 paid staff and a board of directors with 12 members
•  Stabilized fundralslng, operations and personnd to ensure positive transition to new icadership
•  in partnership with the Annie E. Casey Foundation, created & released the 2007 Kids Count data book for New Hampshire

an annual report which tracks child wellbeing. Data which Is used to enrich local and state-level discussions around policy
change,

Director of Annual Giving
Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH 10/2003-01/2007

Responsible for increasing annual giving from SNHU alumni, family and friends through personalized outreach,
donor relationship building, and targeted fundralslng events.

•  Successful $50,000 asks to build stronger scholarship program for students at university, developed moves management
plans for donors to fnaease donor engagement and support

•  Managed annual giving program Including direct mall, Telefund (connecUng with alumni through current students to raise
funds via phone calling) Icadership and dass giving, faculty/staff gMng, dass gift and related events

•  Coordinated all stewardship activities for University President and VP, Development with average gifts over $15,000
•  Managed stewardship for all scholarship donors with average gift of over $1,000

Director of Development & Program Sorvlces
Make-A-Wlsh Foundation of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH 05/1996-10/2003

•  Successfully developed, Implemented and executed a new volunteer management program to grow active volunteer base
from 100 to over 500 volunteers throughout the state

• Managed & grew special events fundralslng from 15 events annually to over 160 ovente grossing over $1 million annually
•  Managed communications and public relations - created newsletters, managed website, pitched wish stories to media -

Increasing the number of families reached to grant over 250 wishes each year.

Education
Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH Springfield College, Manchester, NH (satellite)
Master of Sdence, Organizatlonaj Leadership Master of Science In Human Services, Community Psychology

University of Maine, Orono, ME
Bachelor of Sdence, Child Development & Family Relations

Additional Certifications and Development
•  Certified Personal Trainer, National Academy of Sports Medicine, 2019

•  Adult First Aid/CPR/AED-2-year Certification, American Red Cross, 2018

•  Leadership of Non-ProfIt Organizations, Graduate Certificate, Southern New Hampshire University, 2008

Honorsgt Achievements

•  2015 Community Service Award Winner, Turkish Cultural Center of NH

•  2014 Excellence In Non-ProfIt Award Redplent from NH Business Review
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Devl in

•  2013 Business Leaderof the Year Pinnacle Award Winner, Greater Concord Chamber of Commerce
.* 2013 Presenter at the International Disaster Management Exhibition In Istanbul, Turkey
•  2013 Recognized as one of the Top Women4^ Non-Profits by Business NH Magazine

Community
Women's Resource Group founding member, American Red Cross 3/19-present
Govemor's Council on Diversity and Inclusion, 3/19-present
Waypoint NH (formerly known as Child & Family Servldes of NH) Trustee, l/ZOlS-present
Volunteer New Hampshire, Board Member 2014-2016
NH Volunteer Organizations Active In Disaster (NH VOAD), Board Member 2014-2015
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Kristen McGuigan, LICSW

BdHCfttion
Boston Univbbsity, Twcsdoho, MA SHPTEMoim 2006<May Z009
Masters of Soctal Work
RivibrCollbch Nashua, NH SBPTBMBKn 200A-May Z006
Bachelor of Arts in Human Development
•  Minor In Social Work

NBW HAMPSHlflB TKCHMICAI iNsnTUTB, CONCOOD, NH SKPTBMDBR ZOOZ- MAY Z004
Assodfltes Degree In Barfy Childhood Education
Licences

UconsodIndependentCllnfcaiSocial ICPrtorln Massadiusetts and New Hampshire
B?tpcric»ce
I'AMiuns IN Transition, Manchester, NH
Oilid and Family Program Manager OctobbrZOIA-Pbbsent
•  Provide Individual therapy to chlldren/adolescense and In-horae fomlly counseling
•  Supporting famHles whom struggle with substance use, trauma and homelessneas
•  FadllHato therapeutic play groups and parenting groups

Program Mant^ar/Child and Family Therapist OcroDEUZOCW-OcTCBEnZOlZ
•  Provide trauma-Informed therapeutic services to homeless children and families
•  Manage the ti'auma-inforraed therapeutic pi^chool and afterschool program
«  Provide supervision to clinical staff and early educators whose respoaslblllly levels vaiy
•  Completo psychosodol assessments, develop treatment plans, and DECA/BBRS assessment tools
•  Provide individual thoropy, family (heropy, parenting workshops, staff ti-alnings, gmup therapy and crisis intervention

PsyaioTHimATr associatssop Nortk Rsadinc, Nortb reading, MA July 2013> Present
Ucensod Independent Clinical Social Worker
•  Provide Individual and family counseling to children, atk>)cscences, and adults

. • Provide service to adolesconcos during the tmnisltion into college and adulthood
•  Offer art and play therapy services to childixmagos 3*15 years old
•  Conduct psyc^o^erapy assessments and formulate ti'eatment plans

nLUSMeM01UAI,B0ST0N,MA OCTODEnZOlZ-MAYZOlA-
Clinical Supervisor

•  Ovcrsco clinical services for children being offered in the agency, inctiidtng supeivision to dlnical staff and interns
•  Provide thoropoatic services to children and families enrolled In EUls's educational programming
•  Enroll and oversee services for children that have open cases with the Department of Children and Farhillea
•  Offer In-house trainings and on-going support to early childhood providers
•  Create and Implement behavior management strategies to ensure success for children within the programs

MOORB CCNTER SflRVlCQS INC« MANCHESTER, NH NOVESfOER ZOOS- OCTOUER 2009

Case Manager, Children Services
•  Assist families with children diagnosed with developmental disabilities and participate in crisis Intervention planning
•  Oversee and manage child budget to provide services through the In Home Support program
•  Attend children's individual education plan (II^P) meetings and collaborate with schoul b-ystems on behalf of children's

education

Bastgr Srals rssidbntial FAOLn-y Co-Occurring Unit, Mancheeter, NH Septkmrbic 2008- May 2009

Master level Ginlcal Intern

•  Participate in Individual and group therapy with adolescents with substance abuse diagnoses
•  Develop curriculum for group therapy
•  Involvement with drugcoiutandthe New Hampshire courtsystcm
•  Participated In training for Therapeutic Crisis fnturvcntion

IIICII PlAIN ELEMBNTAnV. ANDOVBH, MA SBPTnMUKR 2007 - MAY 2008
Master Level Clinical Intern

•  hod individual, group, and family therapy sessions employing a variety of techniques
•  Provided emotional and behavioral support to clients wifo autism, ADHD, OCD, PDD-NOS, GAS and depression
•  Served as liaison between stnffand families on mental health Issues and child development

Training?
•  Certified trainer In Suicide Prevention through NAMl (National Association of Montal Illnoss) 2010
•  Certified trainer of Dr. Brazelton Touchpoiiits child development model (Harvan] University) 2011
•  Certified Disaster Case Manager Supervisor (Catholic Charities) MarchZOlA
•  Faculty member participating on a team with mental health professionals, to help Implement the Trauma-Informed

Early Education and Care ̂ sterns Breaktiu-ough Collaborative. Created and Implemontod trouma-lnformed curriculum
training to early chtldlioododucafors. (Boston PudlicHealth Commission, Boston MA) Auoust 2013-SnpTEMBER2014
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Ann-EUse Bryant

Objective
Seeking a posidon as Housing Advocate

Educatloii

Gordon Coltegc WenhsnnMA
Bachelor in PBychdogy and Sodologjr GPA 3.57 May'2010
Honors: Bamr\gU>tt Scholar:for acadmuptiformanamtanimpaetant thaB^chokgfd«partt/tontandcaffpt4s:otustudmt'

jhmta^deparirfim chosen! Dean's SJstfj^raduaii cm laade

Experience
Supportive Services C^e Manager
SonieryiUe Homeless Coalition, Someevflle, MA Match 2014-Prescat
•  Responsible for an active case load of 12-18 individuals and femilies who focmeriy experienced

homeleasness and now are in recovery from substance abuse addiction and/or mental health
diagnoses

•  Provide setvicw in the home and community as outlined on an Individual Service Plan (ISP) in
conjunction with supports to promote mtention of permanent housing sobriety, and symptom
management

• Respond to crisis situations ̂ nchiding relapse) and utilize Harm Reduction tactics to promote client
safety

•  Produce docuraentatioo of all client interactions and maintain up,tx>-date ISPs and assessments
• Attend and participate in team meeting? and as sis tin streamlining dicot services duough the

development and \q)dating of protocols and policies, as well as providbg training for new case
managers tiirougji shadowing opportunities

Supported Employment Specialist
Genesis Behavioral Health. Laconia, NH ^ j^u^ry 2013- Febru^ 2014
•  Supported an active case load of 25t30 individuals with' Severe and Persistent Mental (^MI)

ptun^^y with employment search and schod related activities in the commaeit^i using an
Individualized Serwce Plan (ISP) id provide optimal treatment within a mam ̂ppmadb

• Documented all interactions with clients to maintain continuity of care within and, if necessary
outside of agency

•  Provided emeigency services such as Crisis lutecvcotion. support to local hospital ememency rooms
and/Of contact of local authorities when necessary '

•  Facilitated i^re effective, stmamlmed processes for woriong in con junction with local agencies, as
wdl as wtbin the Supported Employment team in die areas of service provision to clients and new
hire training

Research Data Coordioator
Institute for Community Inclusion, Boston, hlA November 2010- December 2011
• Oinducted research rdated activities (e.g. interviews, transcabing, literature reviews) on two projects

focused on aiding individuals with disabflittes
• Worked as a member of a research team and attended, aixi sometimes led, team meeting

amlabk nqmt
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Genevieve P. Martin

Belated Wor^f
Career Academy, PembtvIcB, NH

Student Support Manager
March 2020- Cunwit

* FocUjtate ̂ up euporvision and support team »oetIm!
weekly and supervise Bacbdor loved sookl woricer

♦ D^oped radftfiilitated eocial emoUoaal Icamloc
cuirioulum for skill group

♦ Ove^and irmm\godtlieetodoat body
contacts and atended team moelSngs

The Mentor Nehrorhi

Program Recruiter
December 2017- May 2019

• «i^randldntMto1»thotepouhoftsterp«teM^
• ̂ipleto home evaluadons and pcmonncl obcolm

*

" Host field markcdng mid infbtmatioa events

Fttmiiy CenlcrBd Specialist
Mty 2016- Decatnba- 2017

• ̂vitte skill bunding and family centered, strength-
o^^^iE^^enaoofl to aohiove long term fmnily
A«i^ d^umentotiiKi and records are complete,
—  auutuioQ,^ aofl UQieiy,

• Make refecrals to services and provide aftercme
plwaungfirrftjmily,

McLean Eospftal, Bclmoati MA

^o«weib;r-i)to/ec//cfl/BGAffvtor

Pdiruftiy 2015-April 2016
• l^iou supimrt and maaagoment to females ages 13-
5 yearn old with omerglag trots of Borderiine
Itirsonnhly Disorder

y^iUU^ yUCIl 05*

oontributioQ, and game night
• Teach the foQT mala components ofBBT

Center, MlddOctomt, NY
Psycfdatfio Teobtidan-BehavhralffeaJth UnU
January 2014- January 2015
• ̂ormpatientcaretafikBimderthedirectjonofa

Registered Professional Nurse
• TacDiialed groups/meetings fbrpatleats
• Be a support system for the patients

^icide Prevention Coordinator-Internship
S^ember 2019-May 2020

data to cootiiiuouslymodiiy improve thopTOgtam and
fSs"" maintains administmtive
'  ̂ compUanccWith SmtadoProvaniioo programming reqiUrements

University ofNew Hampshire, Soda! Work
Uepartmenli Durham, NH
Graduate Research AsststarU
Stpteraber 2019- 2020

■gi'SKXisas"• inte^cw community activist loaders on
environmental change.

lU^ortane Middie School, Rnisfow, NH

'

Certificatjons
• Youth Mental HealdiPirst Aid Certified
•  CPR&FkstAidCatified
•  Oirla.On-TheRim.NH Coach
• ^«oting& Managing Crisis Situations
•  Family Cmterfid Treatment Oertifidd

Meiiibei;-shipo

Univffishy OfNow Hampshire
Master ofSocial Work

ilducation

State Univecsity ofNow YoricatQeneseoBacholorofArts raPsychologyiMinQt: Sociology
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FTT/NHNH, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Maria Devlin President/CEO 183,600 0%

Kristen McGuigan VP of Clinical Services 85,000 3% 2,550
Ann-Elise Bryant Dir of Housing & Support Svcs 70,000 5% 3,500
Genevieve Martin Program Manager 52,000 15% 7,800
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STA BILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03MI
603-271.9474 1-800432.3343 Eit 9474

Fai; 603-271.4230 TOD Acmi; 1-800.733.2964 www.dhlu.oh.gov

/  September 21. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic
and Housing Stability, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract
with the vendor listed In bold below for the ongoing provision of permanent housing and
supportive services to individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness
through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a contract renewal option
by extending the completion date from October 31, 2020. to October 31. 2021, and by
increasing the total price limitation by $107,192 from $281,462 to $388,654. effective
November 1, 2020, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever Is later. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on August 14
2019. item #9.

Vendor Name Vendor Code
Area

Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

FIT/NHNH. Inc.,

Manchester, NH
157730-B001 Manchester $71,374 $0 $71,374

FIT/NHNH. Inc.,
Manchester, NH 157730-B001

Merrimack

County $105,327 $0. $105,327

FIT/NHNH, Inc..
Manchester,

NH

157730-8001
Strafford

County
$104,761 $107,192 $211,953

Total: $281,462 $107,192 $388,654

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with .the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

TH< Dtpo'tnitnt of lleotih ond Huntan Strviees'Minion is to join conwitmities and fomiliet
in providing opporiuniiiet forcitiitnt to achieve health ond independence.
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Hit Excellenqr, Govefnor Ch/htopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

Page 2 of 3

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCSi HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $208,314 $0 $208,314

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc

TBD $73,146 $71,462 $144,610

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $0 $35,730 $35,730

Total $281,462 $107,192 $388,654

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole
source and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendment to be labell^ as sole source.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing permanent housing programs
that deliver rental and leasing assistance; service access; and supportive services to
individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness.

The programs serve individuals and families experiencing homelessness who
would otherwise likely be left in unsafe situations without permanent housing.
Approximately thirty-eight (38) Individuals will be served from November 1, 2020, to
October 31. 2021.

Using the Housing First model, the Contractors develop Stabilization and Crisis
Management plans and facilitate each participant's movement into sustained permanent
housing. Additionally, the Contractors work to maximize each participant's ability to live
more independently by providing connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department svill monitor contracted sen/ices using the following:

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information
and income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

• Timely and accurate data entered by the Contractors into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, which is the
primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

As referenced in Exhibit 0-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section
2.. Renewal, of the original contract, the parlies have the option to extend the agreement
for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years
available.
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Hift Excellency. Governor ChrUtopher T. Sununu
end the Honoreble Coundl
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, there wilt
be fewer permanent housing options and supportive services available, leaving
vulnerable individuals and families, in unsafe and deadly situations, without a safety net.
Additionally, if data is not collected as required by the contracts, the Department will be
out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal funding
for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served: Manchester and MerrimacK and Stafford Counties.

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267. FAIN #NH0053L1T001909

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Hpusing

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing contract (hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Sen/ices (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and FIT/NHNH,*lnc., (hereinafter referred
to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 122 Market Street. Manchester.
NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14. 2019, (Item #9). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2.. Renewal. Paragraph 2.1., the Contract may be amended upon
written agreerrient of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

October 31, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$211,953.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2.,
paragraph 1.2.4., to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers NH0053L1T001808 (November 1, 2019 through October 31, 2020);
NH0053L1T001909 (November 1. 2020- October 31, 2021)

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, by adding Subparagraph 1.2.7.2, to read:

1.2.7.2. November 1, 2020 - October 31, 2021, not to exceed $107,192

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1., Subsection 1.2.,
Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

November 1, November 1, Total
2019 through 2020 through CumulativeDescription October 31, October 31. Amount

2020 2021

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $21,264 $21,264 $42,528

1.2.8.2. Operating Costs: $81,042 $83,473 $164,515

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $2.455 $2,455 $4,910
1.2.6.4. Total Program Amount: $104,761 $107,192 $211,953

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%): $26,190 $27,412 $53,602

6. Add Exhibit B-2. Amendment #1 Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incoroor^ed by
reference herein. IAlP

FIT/NHNH. Inc. Amen<Jmenl#1 Contractor Initials^---—
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11.A01 PagelofS Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/29/2020

Date

— D9Cu9lgn*4

N^J^eW?PRl?rfii"TantanTeTTo"
Title: 01 rector

9/28/2020

Date

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

OocuSlgrMd

I AuWiL Ptvliu-
Name:"^'"'® oeviin

Title: president & CEO

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04.PERMA-11-A01

Amendment #1

Page 2 ol 3
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New Hampshire.Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-OwwUgnMbr

9/29/2020

Date Pinos

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

FlT/NHNH, Inc. Amendment #1

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-1 l-AO! Page 3 of 3
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RT/NHNH: Dover Permanent Housing

|CoC Funds • NH005311T001909

Exhibit B-2, Amendment Ml Budget Sheet

U2AlKii°
1  TOTAL PROGRAM COST |1  CONTRACTOR SHARE | BViS SHARE 1

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services $  14.178 8 8 8 • 8 8  14.175 8 • 8

Operating 8  55.849 8 8 ' 8 • 8 8  55.049 8 • 8

Administration _ 8  1.837 8 8 8 8 • 8 8  1.637 8 • 8

25% Required Match S  18.275 8 8 8  18.275 8 • 8 8 8 • 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 8  89,737 8 8 8  18,275 8 - 8 8  71.482 8 - 8

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services 7.088 7.088

Operating 27,824 27.824

Administrstion 818 818

25% Required Match

TOTAL HUCrrUNDS/BALANCe
9.137 9.137 s •

44.887 9.137 35.730

mssk
TOTAL PROGRAM COST

H17/l7/2QSlOZ3iy'21
CONTRACTOR SHARE

037Si03fSi®
BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Suppcrthm Sernces 21.284 21.284 I -

Operating 83.473 83.473 8 -

Adminislxelion 2.455 2.455 8 •

25% Required Match

TOTAL HUB PUWSiBALANCT
27.412 27.412

134.804 27,412 107.192 8 •

Total W/0 Match 107,192

Contractor Initials

FIT/NHNH, Inc. Dover Permanent Housing

S$-2020-8HS-04-PEBMA-il-AOl Page 1 of 1 Date
9/28/2020
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JefTrey A. Meyen
Commissioner

Christine USantaniciio

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9474 1 -800-852-3345 Ext 9474

Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

July 17, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide Permanent
Housing programs and Supportive Services to homeless individuals and families through the Federal
Continuum of Care Program in an amount r}ot to exceed $281,462, effective per the dates indicated in
the table below, upon Governor and Executive Council approval, through the completion dates indicated
below. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor

Name

Project
Name

Vendor

n
Location

Effective

Date

Completion
Date

SFY

2020

SFY

.2021

Total

Amount

FIT/NH

NH. Inc.

Permanent

Housing VI
157730-

B001 Manchester 9/1/19 8/31/20 $59,478 $11,896 $71,374

FIT/NH

NH, Inc.

Concord

Community
Permanent

Housing

157730-

B001

Merrtmack

County 10/01/19 9/30/20 $78,995 $26,332 $105,327

FIT/NH

NH, Inc.

Dover

Permanent

Housing

157730-

8001
Stratford

County
11/1/19 10/31/20 $69,841 $34,920 $104,761

Total $208,314 $73,148 $281,462

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in State
Fiscal Years (SFY) 2020 and 2021 upoh the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $208,314

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $73,148

Total $281,462
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because federal regulations require the Department to specify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process,
prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The application process
and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start date of a grant is based
on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This results in Continuum of
Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests, occurring in various months
throughout the year.

The purpose of these requests is for the provision of Permanent Housing programs that shall
deliver rental/leasing assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative

services.

Collectively, these vendors have a target to provide permanent housing and supportive services,
to a minimum of thirty-eight (38) participants from September 1, 2019 through October 31. 2020. .

The attached agreements represent three (3) of thirty (30) total annual agreements, many of
which have renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year, with vendors who are located
throughout the state, to ensure ongoing, statewide delivery of housing services through New Hampshire's
Continuum of Care Program.

Using the "Housing First' model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the Vendors will facilitate participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream services to maximize the participant's ability to
live more independently.

HUD established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to
address the problems of housing instability and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and
strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main, purposes:

•  A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

•  A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis. ^

•  An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure contract compliance and
vendor performance:

•  Annual compliance reviews shall be performed that include the collection of data relating to
' compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

•  Statistical reports shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded vendors, Including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars.

•  All vendors funded for rapid re-housing, transitional, permanent or coordinated entry housing,
and/or outreach/supportive sen/ices will be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry

•  in the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they are required
by law to use an alternate means of data collection. The NH Homeless Management
Information System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs funded through these contracts.
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His Excellency,'Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of these agreements, the parties have the option to extend contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize these requests. Permanent Housing
and Supportive Services for individuals and families, who are experiencing housing instability and/or
homelessness, may not be available in their communities, and there may be an increase in demand for
services placed upon the communities' local welfare authorities and other human-services providers. It
may also cause individuals and/or families to not have access to housing, and therefore, experience
homelessness.

Area served: City of Manchester and Merrimack and Stafford Counties; a minimum of thirty-eight
(38) individuals will be served collectively.

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Office of Community Planning and Development, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267.

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available. General funds will not l^e
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted.

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department o( Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing op/>ortunilies for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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c W . ̂  FORM NUMBER PO? (version 5/8/15)Subject: Cgmmtmrn gf Care. FIT/rWH. inc.. Dover Permanem Housing. SS.2Q20.BHS-Q4.Perma.11

This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confideniia! or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The Slate ofNcw Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.3 Contractor Name

FJT/NHNH, Inc.

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)641-9441

1.6 Account Number

05.95-42-423010-7927
102-500731

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301.

1.4 Contractor Address
122 Market Street

Manchester, NH 03101

1.7 Completion Date

October 31, 2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$104,761

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White

Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature

P) I
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maureen Beauregard, President
1.13 Acknowledgement: Slate of New Hampshire County of Hiilsborough

On July 16. 2019 ; before the undersigned ofTiccr, personally appeared the person identincd in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s^e executed this document in the capacitv
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Rl/TH A. SYREK, Notary Public
My Cormdttton EipIraB 8opt8mber6,2023

U13.2- Name and Title of Notary or Wjstice of the Pca^

Ruth Syrek. Admin. Asst.. Notary Public
1. 14>^tate Agency Signj|(u)-eIimv r\5i^iL./Oigiiaiufc . p.

Kf xim nijl /1XIIA
li Nan)«.and Title of State Agency Signatory

<1 i^iu
1.16 Approval by the N^H.)pcpartmcnt of Administr^ion, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the AtJ^y General (Fojjj, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By: X/Z /7.A^ On:

.18 Approval by^e Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORM ED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified In block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the anached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall t>ecome cfTective on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the dale the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("EfTective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the EfTective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds, in the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the Slate shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2 of 4

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notsviihsianding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,

and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Stales, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Slate of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the Slate or United Slates access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
(his Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined efTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or perforrnance of this

Contractor Initials

Date July 16.2019
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfTicer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may lake any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending alt payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall-mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps; charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither on agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,

.  liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of, '
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy fotms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfTiccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certiflcatcfs)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreentcnt.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificaiefs) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ccrtificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 - A
(" Workers' Compensaiion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
ond maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers* Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Slate to
enforce any provisions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deerned to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United'
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only afler approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and Is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of (he parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any pany.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
bd executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions Appilcable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to;

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General.
Court or federal or slate court orders may have an impact on the services descril^ed herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Mousing Supports, has'the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b). US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578; CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.7. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Infonmation Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

FIT Dover Permartent Housing ExItbiiA Contractor Ir^s.
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2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement and participate in the Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all
projects funded by the CoC Program. Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing
Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule. 24
CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Housing Program that is targeted to serve eight (08)
homeless individuals in Strafford County with tenant-based, rental assistance and supportive
services, and which includes but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing; and

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and. at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24,CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidenceofdomestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
only If the original violence is not already documented in the program parlicipant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor.- mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

FIT Dovof Permanam Houalnfl Exhibit A Contractor Initials /
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence,
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, Including
emails, volcemails, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
. where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g.. employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-
homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37{a)(1)(ii)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b). including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.
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2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Oroanizationai conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, Implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy,
that complies with the requirements In 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g):

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b);

2.6.3. Affirmatively Furtherino Fair Housing bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD; and

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

;  t

■  2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting-privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.
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3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report (APR): Within thirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing In particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NORA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reoorts as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training In data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The.Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth In the applicable HUD Project
•  Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to the following:

5.1.1.1. httPs://www.hudexchanoe.info/DroQrams/coc/svstem-Derformance-measures/#Quidance:

5.1.1.2. 24 CFR Part 578; Continuum of Care Program; and

5.1.1.3. Public Law 102-550

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Housing Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37. Block
1.8. Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0053L1T001808

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. November 1, 2019-October 31. 2020, not to exceed $104,761

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $21,264

1.2.8.2. Operating Cost: $81,042

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $2.455

1.2.8.4. Total program amount: $104,761

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) $26,190

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared In accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (l).copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301
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2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor Is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States in "Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions," within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.
\

3. Prelect Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the Stale to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR.part 200.

3.2. Continuurn of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and. in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities In a single project found in 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leaslng'funds. with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other, sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3:3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
In-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
'  allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Eligibility, Exhibit 6. The Contractor must

have vk'ritten approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line Item not to exceed an
amount as specified in this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). in an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified In Section 1.2. Exhibit B.

3.4 5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit 8..
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

housinosupportslnvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report. Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the Slate disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and 8. or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expense Eliqlbllltv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. OoeratinQ Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include;

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing:

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to resen/e for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1:5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.'

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. Supportive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations In 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578;53(a) (2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of Individualized services to meet the needs of the program
participant(s) are eligible costs; . /v-n
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing chlid-
care vouchers, for chiidren from famliies experiencing homeiessness, including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of Improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer instruction, on-the-job Instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;
5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program

participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
personfs) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

'5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homeiessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
.independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling: individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations at>out the
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and Intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are Ineligible; .

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15);

SS.2020-BHS-0<.PERP4A.11 P»9e5ollO Dai« ^019
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits,
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies:

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described In 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) - (16)
of this section Is being directly dellvereli by the recipient or subrecipient.''eliglble
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional llcensure or certifications
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provlded-to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth In 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be: ,

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit If the rent Is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, In relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasing funds
only: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housir>g codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.

®  Contractor IntUals,
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6.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based,
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental

assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9:2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to, necessary .expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following:
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. above. Exhibit B.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs Incurred for official business in carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings: and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasing:

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organization(s), or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

5.6.1. Requirements:
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5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable In relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUD-determined fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities, if the structure
is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord in
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from,
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid frorh money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be In compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone. Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Management System

6.1. Fiscal Control; The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of. and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed In direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the Slate may require.

ExhtWlB contractor miusls,
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SPECIAL PRQVISinMS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenahls and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for sendees provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. TImo and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall Include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
Individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Stale may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding. It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the.
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase; Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rales charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rales for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitt^ to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who Is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records speclHed above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and al)
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
In-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

6.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including al) forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the provision of
Offtce of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 'Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Functions. Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as '
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Corifidentlallty of Records: All Information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
In connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such Information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before priniting. production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, Including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Offtcer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and vyiil at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civril Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,(X)0 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cef1.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistiebiower Protections; The
following shall apply to ail contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in4d
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rkshts and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whisUeblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee vt/histleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
funclion(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions if
the sulxxjntractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following;

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation vrill be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at Its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue.for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAIUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPIANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these sen/ices.

Exhibll C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4. Condiiiona! Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or othenivlse
mc^lfies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminiate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
unintemupted delivery'of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above. .

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

jffl2Exhibit C-1 - Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Lanpuaoo Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS e

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of. 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub^rantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificdte set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
v/orkplace and specifying the actions thai will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibKion;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making K a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
ofTicer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhlbii D - Certlflcadon regarding Drug Free Vendor initials
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

July 16. 2019
Date Name

Title:

Vendor Name: FiT/NHNH, Inc.

Name Manroan RaaiirAnarHMaureen Beauregard
President

Exhlt^t 0 - Certlflcstlon regarding Drug Free Ver)dor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDiNG LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and

•  31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the Generai Provisions execute the foiiowing Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATiON - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XiX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member.of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to '
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at ail tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that ail sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly!

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance vyas placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100 000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

®  Name; Maureen Beauregird ^
Title: president
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CERTIFiCATtON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILrTY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compiy with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmenl,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an

• explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal." and
'voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction tie entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certificalion Regarding Debarmenl, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. wthout modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExhlWt F - Certlflcoiton Regarding Oebafmerrt. Suspension Vendor inlUals i'/^ ̂
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction vWth a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for othenvise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from particlpatidn in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include ttiis clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without mr^ification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16. 2019 IL/A—
Date Name:/Maureen Beauregard ^

Title: president
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATiON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, wKh any applicable
federal nondischmination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under (his
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans v4th Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons wHh disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, comrhercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.f^.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships vrith faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In (he event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the .Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH. Inc.

July 16, 2019

Date ' Naife: Msa
Titl P

ureen eauregar

e: resident
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certincation:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

-iNlvie 2019

Date

Title; President
Nam^: Maureen Beauregard '
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section T60.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Deslonated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aaareoatlon" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f- "Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a persona) representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

]. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^ A

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor tnlilals /
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I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Inforniatlon unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. - Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
H. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busings

3/2014 Exhibit t Vendor imtlalsj
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObHoatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured

'protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made; '

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.
I  I

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor Initleb
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record .
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shajl document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such inforrnation as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenvise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business^^
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate'to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary. '

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and v
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security /v>j^
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Seoreaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section' (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

TheState

ii /u? h /U n
Signature of Authoriz^d^ epre$en|ativ^

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

Name of the Ven

N^e of Authorized Representative

?n//rA'fi OA.l'ty

 ^ Signature of Authorized Re^e^entative

Maureen Beauregard

Title of Au

Date

thorlzed Representative

1

Name of Authorized Representative

President
Title of Authorized Representative

July 16. 2019
Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABiUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS tV)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170.(Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH. Inc.

July 16. 2019
Date NametMaureen Beauregard

President

fjAfp/n

Tie:

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Vendor Initials.
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance _ _
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions ere true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 825360399

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub^rants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information at>out the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under sectipn 13(a} or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DKHS/1107t3
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security incident", shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
incident" in section two (2) of NiST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

- Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFi), Federal Tax information (FTi), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hard\A«re,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open \Afireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted Pi, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C F R §
160.103. ■

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R; Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A.- Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor.
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by iaw. in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be twund by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data. '

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. if End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will haye 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive inlrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. the Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor v^ll maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract temilnatibn; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor vwll document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certifrcatioh to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of. this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Conridential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor vrill maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NM systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor nvIII not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Infonmation, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/lndex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section Vi. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrvoted and being
sent to and l>eing received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours, (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all limes when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-t)ased
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. ,

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine If personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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